GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY

NVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY

o]
ENTERTAINMENT. CONVENTION, SHOW & SPORTS FACILITIES

Meeting of Board of Directors

Wednesday, August 28, 2002
7:30 a.m. — 9:30 a.m.
County Administration Building Board Room, 3" Floor
Grand Rapids, Michigan 49503

AGENDA
I Call to Order
IL Minutes of June 26, 2002 Board Meeting Action
E' III.  Public Comment
Authority IV.  Presentation — as of publication, none planned
’°2: e V.  DeVos Place Construction Update - Erhardt/Hunt Information
D e Committee Reports
Clif Charles a. Building Committee Information
SD‘“"’ :ey ) b. Operations and Marketing Committee Information
—— - CVB Update
J:e' . :or:oselli c. Finance Committee
g’ i Approval of Paid Invoices Action
ii. Approval of SMG Financial Reports for Action
periods ending June 30 and July 31, 2002
iil. Approval of CAA Financial Reports for Action

periods ending June 30 and July 31, 2002

VII. Resolution Authorizing Execution of Van Andel Arena Action
Premium Seat Agreements and Corporate Suite Agreements

VIII. Resolution Approving Amendment to Agreement Action
for Consulting Services with Robert Duff Consulting, Inc.

IX. Resolution Approving Amendment to Agreement for Action
Consulting Services with Jim Hiashutter and Jerry Fellinger

X. SMG Report Information
- Facilities Calendar
VAN ANDEL
ARENA
Van Andel Arena Grand Center
130 Fulton West 245 Monroe Ave. NW
Grand Rapids, MI 49503 Grand Rapids, MI 49503
616.742.6600 616.742.6600
Fax 616.742.6197 Fax 616.742.6590



XI. Other Business

XII. Next Meeting Date - Wednesday, September 25, 2002, 7:30 a.m., Kent County
Administration Building, Commission Board Room

XIII. Adjournment



II.

MINUTES OF THE GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY

Call to Order

CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING

Wednesday, June 26, 2002

Item II

Chairman John Logie called the meeting to order at 7:30 a.m. Chairman Logie presided
and Secretary/Treasurer Birgit Klohs recorded.

Attendance

Members Present;

Members Absent:

Staff/Others:

John Logie, Chairman

Lew Chamberlin
Clif Charles
David Frey
Birgit Klohs

Steve Heacock
Joseph Tomaselli

Henri Boucher
David Czurak
Robert DuHadway
Joe Erhardt

Jim Gray

George Helmstead
Kurt Kimball
Chris Machuta
Rich MacKeigan
Bill Sewall

Dale Sommers

Al Vanderberg
Susan Waddell
Jana Wallace

Jim Watt

Garrison Wells
Tim Wondergem

Minutes of Prior Meetings

ShowSpan

Grand Rapids Business Journal
DK Security

Erhardt/Hunt Joint Venture
CAA Owner Representative
CVB

City of Grand Rapids

SMG

SMG

Erhardt/Hunt Joint Venture
CAA Owner Representative
Kent County

CAA

City of Grand Rapids

SMG

The Grand Rapids Press
Wondergem Consulting

Motion: Mr. Frey, supported by Mr. Tomaselli, moved to approve the Minutes of the May 22,
2002 meeting of the Authority. Motion carried unanimously.

I

None.

IV.

None.

Public Comment

Presentation



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
June 26, 2002 — Page 2

V. DeVos Place Construction Update — Bill Sewall

Mr. Sewall reported that during June a series of code compliance requirements would be
installed, including new stair doors and fire proofing measures. Steelwork on the Grand Gallery
is 95% complete. Primary activities in the space include concrete slabs on the elevated floors,
stair installation, mechanical piping and ductwork. Block walls in the lower level are
substantially complete. The box truss on the east side of the Exhibit Hall is self-supporting. The
subcontractors are starting to set the super box trusses. The trusses are being assembled on the
ground in the center of the space while temporary shoring towers are set in place. Phase III work
included the bid and award of DeVos Performance Hall stage rigging upgrades and the Grand
Center compaction ground work that will stabilize the earth below the foundations. Mr.
Sommers presented a summary of M/WBE participation. The construction manager continues
exceed the project goal of 10%, as 16% of the subcontracts with opportunity for participation
have been awarded to M/WBE’s.

VI. Committee Reports

Building Committee

Mr. Sommers stated that discussions have taken place among staff, the contractor, and Mrs.
Keeler regarding renovation of the Keeler Lobby. The project is outside the scope of the
convention center renovation and would be funded 100% from different sources. The Building
Committee considered possibilities to cover the $13 million shortfall. It was suggested that the
CAA Board request an additional $5 million from the DDA. This discussion came about from a
report to the Committee on the riverfront development. The City, DDA staff, and owner
representatives met to discuss the DDA and project visions. The DDA design is $1.5 million
more than the original project design. The City, with DDA match, has secured an additional
$300,000 grant for the riverfront. An additional $700,000 would still be needed. At the June 19,
2002 meeting, the Building Committee approved a motion to recommend that the CAA Board
request an additional $5 million to be used on the current project vision.

Motion: Ms. Klohs, supported by Mr. Frey, moved to approve the recommendation of the
Building Committee to request an additional $5 million from the Downtown Development

Authority to be used on the current project vision. Abstain: Mr. Logie. Motion carried.

Operations Committee

Mr. Chamberlin reported that the Committee received presentations from ShowSpan and the
Grand Rapids New Car Dealers Association (GRNCDA). Both groups have requested to reserve
show dates for the 2004 Auto Show. The GRNCDA has organized and promoted the Auto Show
since 1999. GRNCDA contracted with ShowSpan to produce the auto shows for the period 1999
through 2003. GRNCD has contracted with Liberty Productions to assist with the 2004 Auto
Show. Although there is nothing that would preclude the CAA from allowing two auto shows, it
would be impractical. Therefore, the Committee is planning to select one or the other. The
Committee will confer with Attorney Dick Wendt about the legal issues involved and inform the
parties once a decision has been reached. The CAA will function as an appellate review board if
the parties are not satisfied with the Operations Committee decision.



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
June 26, 2002 - Page 3

Mr. Helmstead stated that sales are progressing and the CVB has booked 41,856 room nights this
year. The CVB has 126,183 room night leads this year as compared to 86,255 last year. The
CVB is working with the Lions International Club to book a convention n 2007. Representatives
from the National Association for Agricultural County Agenda will be in town for a tour July 9
and 10. The CVB hopes to book the group for its 2007 convention. CVB staff just returned
from a trade show in Washington, D.C. and brought back 16 prospects and 27 leads. The CVB is
planning a fall familiarization tour in September. The CVB is working with the construction
manager on the Midwest Woodworkers convention. The client will be in town July 22 in the
hopes of finalizing an acceleration fee agreement.

Finance Committee
Ms. Klohs presented the Finance Committee report.
a. Approval of Paid Invoices for the Period May 17 — June 14, 2002

Motion: Ms. Klohs, supported by Mr. Frey, moved to approve payment of invoices totaling
84,117,629.86, as presented. Motion carried unanimously.

b. Approval of SMG Financial Statements
Motion: Mr. Frey, supported by Ms. Klohs, moved to approve the SMG Financial Statements
for the Van Andel Arena and Grand Center for the period ended May 31, 2002, as presented.
Motion carried unanimously.

c. Approval of CAA Financial Report
Motion: Ms. Klohs, supported by Mr. Frey, moved to approve the Grand Rapids — Kent County
Convention/Arena Authority Financial Statements for the period ended May 31, 2002, as

presented. Motion carried unanimously.

VII. Approval of Amendment to Construction Manager Agreement

Mr. Sommers recommended approval of Amendment No. 1 to the Construction Manager
Agreement regarding the Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP). The Construction Manager
Agreement provides that, once drawings and specifications are sufficiently complete,
Erhardt/Hunt will propose a GMP for Phases I and II. Erhardt/Hunt proposes a GMP for Phases
I and II of $118,054,870 with a substantial completion date of December 31, 2003. If the owner
requests any changes outside the scope of the GMP, the owner would be responsible to provide
the additional funds. The contractor would be financially responsible for any it requires outside
the scope of the GMP.

Motion: Mr. Frey, supported by Ms. Klohs, moved to approve Amendment No. 1 to the
Construction Manager Agreement. Motion carried unanimously.



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
June 26, 2002 — Page 4

VIII. Approval of FY 2003 Operating/Capital Replacement and Administrative Budgets

A preliminary presentation of the budgets was made to the Finance Committee and the full CAA
Board during the regularly scheduled meetings in May. There were no changes to the
operating/capital replacement budgets since that time. Ms. Wallace noted changes to the

administrative budget: insurance costs have increased significantly and parking revenues for the
lot behind the Arena have been included

Motion: Mr. Frey, supported by Ms. Klohs, moved to approve the FY 2003 Operating/Capital
Replacement Budgets and Administrative Budgets as presented. Motion carried unanimously.

IX. Approval of Extension of Bookkeeping Services Agreement

Ms. Wallace stated that the CAA approved Beene Garter LLP as the CAA’s bookkeeper for a
one-year term expiring June 30, 2002. Beene Garter has submitted a proposal to extend the
existing agreement for an additional one-year period. Beene Garter has increased its hourly
rates by approximately 3% over the current year authorization.

Motion: Ms. Klohs, supported by Mr. Charles, moved to approve the Extension of Bookkeeping
Services Agreement with Beene Garter LLP, as presented. Motion carried unanimously.

X. Approval of Extension of Pavroll Services Agreement

Beene Garter has proposed an extension of its existing payroll services agreement that includes

a modest increase for basic payroll and W-2 processing fee schedules. Ms. Wallace stated the
increase would become effective in October 2002.

Motion: Ms. Klohs, supported by Mr. Charles, moved to approve the Extension of Payroll
Services Agreement with Beene Garter LLP, as presented. Motion carried unanimously.

XL SMG Report

Facilities Calendar

Mr. MacKeigan reported that the sold-out Eagles concert was the highest grossing one-night
event. Last Sunday’s Rampage game was televised on TNN. TNN was very impressed with
the facility and staff. Tom Petty kicks off his tour at the Arena on June 27. The Van Andel
Arena will play host to Korn, Cher, WWE, Mary J. Blige, Styx/REO, the Who, and possibly
two additional summer events. Mark Thorsen, a concession expert from SMG corporate, was in
town to tour the Arena and Grand Center. Mr. Thorsen will be involved in the discussions for
the Grand Center concession agreement. SMG corporate is conducting an internal audit of the
Grand Center. These audits occur every two years. After two seasons with the Grand Rapids
Griffins, Coach Bruce Cassidy was named head coach of the Washington Capitals.



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
June 26, 2002 — Page 5

XII.  Adjournment

There being no other business, the meeting was adjourned at 8:35 a.m.

Birgit M. Klohs
Recording Secretary



AR

Scott Atchison

Information Booth & The Walking Tour of Downtown Grand Rapids
2251 South Saulk Trail #126
Grand Rapids, Ml 49506

616-957-3296 NativeGR@aol.com OL@_L gk)ll@(e» 50&&&
Jowe™
ey

Sercire. in bt

8/28/02
Board of Directors
Grand Rapids/Kent County Convention & Visitors Bureau

Something in it for every one:

The big winners will be all of us as a whole.

The city of Grand Rapids & the Kent County area to get added exposure on nights, weekends & holidays.

The Walking Tour of Downtown Grand Rapids to be translated into various languages.

Driving tours of the metropolitan area.

Information on restaurants such as menus to be viewed, hours of operation for that days, advertised specials
with a price, address and telephone number. DAILY MENU MATRIX

Pre-printed maps; Downtown and a map of the of the Metropolitan area that directions can be added with
a highlighter marker. 1] % A7"

ANY AND ALL BUSINESSES paying downtown development tax or a member of the convention bureau or
a member of the Chamber of Commerce to have their information presented.

Breton Village & Woodland mall for shopping. (locations printed on maps)

Public Museum of Grand Rapids to give guided tours of downtown Grand Rapids (GR Festival).

The West Michigan Whitecaps & Frederick Meijer Gardens & Sculpture Park & John Ball Park Zoo to be
advertised and locations printed on maps.

The VanAnel Arena and their events.

The Grand Rapids Press - THE CONVENTION WEEKLY - to be distributed form the information booth.
Same size and layout (TEMPLATE) as the TV WEEK on the Grand Rapids Press.

Showing the layout fo the new convention facilities and the many rooms of the convention facilities.
Describing the functions of the specific conventions - articles about the conventioneers.

Showing the places, times, events, loocations and speakers of the various conventions.

Telling the history of Grand Rapids and its many suburbs.

So all the conventions will know about the other conventions.

Distributed in the Sunday Press weekly.

Noop,rwN =

Direction for visitors to Grand Rapids and the Metropolitan area.

FOR THE DOWNTOWN WORKERS
Daily information of restaurant specials: Item, Price, hours of operation, telephone number and address.



The
Convention
Weekly

Week of July 1* through July 6™ 2004

The City of Grand Rapid
&
Kent County
Michigan




Rapids

=
S
S~
G_

Do wntown




The
Convention
Weekly

Week of July 1* through July 6™ 2004

The City of Grand Rapid
&
Kent County
Michigan

CITY OF
GRAND

| RARIDS
MICHGAN




Scott Atchison

Information Booth & The Walking Tour of Downtown Grand Rapids
2251 South Saulk Trail #126
Grand Rapids, MI 49506
616-957-3296 NativeGR@aol.com

City/County

Convention Bureau
Cont Coumy Butaing Room310. | Directions/Information

7:30 AM

08/28/02 BOOth

CITY OF
GRAND

RARPIDS
MICHIGAN

To date T have address and have left detailed writings to The Grand Rapids City Commission and the Kent County Commission about this plan
of a CITY/COUNTY information booth.

The Plan

Something in it for everyone: Conventioneers, Tourists & Citizens - Governmental Units - Various Authorities

We are living in an information world! An information booth in the heart of downtown Grand Rapids. A free walking tour for visitors to feel
like locals. The walking tour translated into many languages. Information that is updated daily for visitors use. What a concept!

I am contacting people, groups, and Governmental organizations to gain support for a downtown Grand Rapids information booth that will be
opened nights, weekends and holidays that will be located in front of the McKay Tower next to Rosa Parks Circles. This will be an outdoor, all
season DIRECTIONS/INFORMATION BOOTH. The booth, at this time, is to be called The "CITY/COUNTY" Information Booth." The
booth will provide free information to better advertise our city, county and region of Michigan. Iam looking for your support at this time.

My actions will be that of a new entity, Michigan Flashcard, which will process the information and coordinate the activities of the information
booth to be supported physically and financially by the following entities:

The City of Grand Rapids

Kent County

The Grand Rapids/Kent County Convention Bureau

The Downtown Development Authority

The Grand Rapids Police Department & Kent County Sheriff

The Downtown Alliance (Chamber of Commerce)

The Grand Rapids Press

Private Business Contributions - (example - pre-printed maps by Meijer or 5/3 with their locations)

SO B S BORIS =

The information booth will assist conventioneers (current/future), visitors and tourists with information on what there is to do and directions on
how to get there. Information such as restaurants, hotels, shopping, festivals, fairs and activities around the metropolitan area. The information
booth will also assist citizens from Kent County with their metropolitan area. The information booth will also distribute free copies of “The
Walking Tour of Downtown Grand Rapids”. The Grand Rapids Press did a nice article of the walking tour on 02/06/02.




BUILDING COMMITTEE REPORT
To
Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
August 28, 2002

The month of July saw the completion of the Grand Gallery structural steel detailing and installation.
Currently Steel Setvice Corporation and their erector AZCO are installing the metal roof decking around

the skylight openings.

Elsewhete in the Grand Gallety, air-handling units have been delivered and are being set in place in the
penthouse, and new contractors, Bouma Corp. and Cleveland Construction have mobilized to begin sptay
fireproofing and metal studwork respectively. The mechanical and electrical trades continue rough in on all
levels and the limestone cladding operation is going well on the East Stair Tower. Modemn Roofing has
completed the penthouse roof membrane and is preparing to start the main roof installation.

The Exhibit Hall work still consists primarily of steel and concrete work. AZCO has completed the East
Box Truss and is well underway (approx. 75%) with construction of the West Truss. They have also
successfully detailed and decked out the east thitd of the roof over the Exhibit floor space. The Catwalk
System installation above the floor has begun and preparations are underway to place concrete in the Box
Ttuss, thus transforming the structure into usable mechanical space.

Phase 3 work in July includes the continuation of back stage rigging upgrades and elevator modernization.
The first of two is nearing completion for state inspection the first week of August. Construction
documents for Phase 3 were reviewed and are being edited for issuance for bids. Ethardt/Hunt,
Progressive and the Owner Representatives ate working to establish a release timetable and bidding period.

The Committee has requested SMG provide consulting setvices for FF&E as established by contract.
Additionally, the Committee has reviewed the Graphics/Signage package for Phase 2 and 3.



Press Release

For More Information Contact:

For Release: Immediately - August 28, 2002 Barbara Kravitz
Director of Communications
(616) 459-8287 or (877) VISIT GR
Email: kravitzb@visitgrandrapids.org
www.visitgrandrapids.org

CVB BOOKS NEW DE VOS PLACE CONVENTIONS TOTALING
OVER $20 MILLION TO DATE

Grand Rapids, Michigan - With more than two years of construction still ahead, DeVos Place has
become an “economic engine” vital to Grand Rapids and the West Michigan region. The Grand
Rapids/Kent County Convention & Visitors Bureau (CVB) announced today that it has booked 47
conventions for the new center totaling $21.5 million in estimated economic impact. The first convention
is scheduled for December 2003, while others are booked as far out as 2007.

The two most recent bookings are among the largest conventions Grand Rapids has hosted,
according to the Bureau. Newly committed is the Handweavers Guild of America, Inc. The organization
has scheduled its biennial international conference at DeVos Place during June 2006. According to
Sandra Bowles, exécutive director of the Handweavers Guild of America, Inc., “This convention will bring
over 2,500 registered participants from over 30 countries and will showcase the work of hundreds of
artists.” The CVB has reserved more than 3,700 hotel rooms in the local area for the six-day convention
and expects an economic impact of more than $1 million for the region.

-MORE-

GRAND RAPIDS/KENT COUNTY CONVENTION & VISITORS BUREAU
140 MONROE CENTER NW, SUITE 300, GRAND RAPIDS, M| 49503-2893 616.459.8287 800.678.9859 FAX 616.459.7291
www.visitgrandrapids.org + e-mail: mailbox visitgrandrapids.org



PAGE TWO - NEW CONVENTION BOOKINGS

Also recently booked is the National Rural Letter Carriers Assodiation. This group will bring more
than 3,200 delegates to DeVos Place in August 2007. During an eleven-day period, this convention will
book more than 8,000 hotel rooms, making this one of the largest conventions in Grand Rapids history.
The Bureau estimates the economic impact to be more that $2.2 million.

Dann Werner of the Michigan Rural Letter Carriers Association states, “The city’s downtown with
its night clubs, theaters and dining options within walking distance of the new convention center helped
to convince the delegates that Grand Rapids was the place to hold this future national convention.”

According to CVB president Steve Wilson, “These recent bookings indicate that DeVos Place will
truly become the economic engine that we predicted. Most of these conventions could not have been
booked previously in Grand Rapids due to space limitations at the Grand Center. We have now created
a momentum in the meetings industry to bring larger groups here more frequently.”

Once DeVos Place is complete, annual economic activity generated by its operations is expected
to top $105 million.

For additional information, contact the Grand Rapids/Kent County Convention & Visitors Bureau at
616-459-8287.

# # #

NOTE: A COMPLETE LIST OF DE VOS PLACE BOOKINGS IS ATTACHED.



DeVos Place Booked Business
Printed: 8/26/02

Arrival Blocked Total Direct
Year Groups Attendance Rooms Expenditures
2003 1 7,800 2,680 $752,598
2004 16 34,150 27,065 $7,600,393
2005 18 48,050 24,951 $7,006,740
2006 8 20,500 11,246 $3,158,102
2007 4 10,800 10,769 $3,024,151

47 121,300 76,711 $21,541,983

GRAND RAPIDS/KENT COUNTY CONVENTION & VISITORS BUREAU
140 MONROE CENTER NW, SUITE 300, GRAND RAPIDS, MI 49503-2893 616.459.8287 800.678.9859 FAX 616.459.7291
www . visitgrandrapids.org * e-mail: mailbox@visitgrandrapids.org



$96°62€$
128'eses
982'002$
$68°09¢$
$95°229%
968'691%
G£.'299%
850°'Z.¥$
150°L6¥$
69¢€'9¢C1$
8P1'€6€$
ey'sLys
8v1'c6€$
112'602%
028'082$
G12'G59$
62e'zess
£v6'zees
26.'6£€$
982'002$
206'80¢$
896'€.9%
$68'09¢$
280°C/€$
¥86°'9¢€$
89¢°1€€$
2€8'895$
ere'ost’'LS
+89'902$
8y1‘c6€$
zer'sLys
028'082$
162'G95$
oet'Lzes
S1.'659%
£v6'22¢€$
206'80¢$
86G°25L$
sainjipuadxy
18u1q [ejoL

SLL°4
L6
Sl
68zt
G6E'T
S09
09€°2
189°'L
0LL'V
osy
00¥'L
06%'L
00¥'L
SyL
000°}
GEe's
098}
oSt
(1R A
5192
00L'L
00¥'C
682't
sze'l
ooz't
0814
066°L
G6¢S
9€L
00¥'L
06v'L
000°L
€10
99l
GEE'Z
oSkt
00L't
089'C
swooy pax)oolg

005"y
000't
005
00L'
0082
008
000
002't
000
009
05
005"t
006's
000t
002'
0012
006'Y
008'L
000'Z
005
000't
005}
00L'
000't
000t
002
006}
0009
000}
052
005t
00z'
005
005"y
0042
008"t
000}
008'2
auepulay

30UaJaU0Y {enuuy 9002
90URIBHUOD SAIPMS [BIOS 900
uonisodx3 apei). saxe Jeal9 9002

wnuo4 uojes sAleW 002

MOYS spei] [efuualg

UORUBAUOYD [enuuy

moysdwels Sdv G002

0dx3 pue UoRUBAUOY) [enuuy G002

MOYS apel ) PUB UORJUSAUOY) [BnUUY
UORUBAUOY) [BnuuY S00Z

UOIJUBAUOY) [enuuy G002

odx3 SW3 $00¢

3JUBIBUOY [eNuUUY G002

Bunesiy NO/IW ¢ uoibay Suudg [enuuy 5002
MOYS 9pei] pue UORUSAUOYD [BNUUY G002
9ouaI9ju0) diysiapea 9elS [Bnuuy G002
UORUBAUOY [enuuy G002

UORUSAUOD (BNUUY D3O UBBIYOIN G00T
3VUBIBJUOY daid Yol G002

uonisodx3 apel ), sexeT jeasd G002
93UaJau0Y [BNULY G002

doyssyop |euolieN #002

wnio4 uoles sAleN ¥00¢

90Ua19)U0)) jenuuy $00Z

MOUS SpeJ| pUB UOIUSAUOD |enuuy 002
UORUSAUOY) [enuuy $00Z

$10SS900.1d JEalN JO UOQUBAUDYD [enuuy +002
AOUIIBIUOY [BIBUAY) JeluuaIpend) $002

¢ uoibay [enuuy ¥00¢

UORUBAUOY) [enuuy $002

odx3 SW3 $002

MOUYS 9pel] PUB UOBUIAUOY jenuuy 002
3VUBIPJUOY |enuuy 002

90UBIBJUOY jenuuy 002

douaIsjuo)) diysiopea siels |enuuy $002
UORUBAUOD [enuuy 930 UeBIYSIN ¥00Z
9ouaI8juUOY |enuuy 002

MOYS SINIOMPOOAN ISOMPIN

awepN Bunoeay

ssauisng paoog ade|d soAad

Buiwies Ul siasn ABojouyoa] pajejey-sendwo) Joj ussy | 90/LL/E
S8IpN}S [B190S 8y} 10} {IounoD ueBIydIN 90/52/e
uoneossy adeospue pue AuasinN UEBIUDIN 90/2L/1L
sAleW SO/SH/LL
*0u| smoysapell S0/6/L1
uoperwossy Lieiqr uebiyoiy 50/82/01
Aepog dlaleliyd uesuswy 50/8/8
anbea uojun P8I UEBIYOIN SO/EC/S
uonepossy |ejuag uebiudIN So/8L/S
UOREIN0SSY 80IAI8G P00 |00Y0S UBBIUOIN GO/L/S
S|eyO ssauisng |00ydS UBBIYOIW S0/62/%
S90S SOUBINQUIY JO UOKEIoSSY UEBIUdIN SO/ve/v
uaIpjIyD BunoA Jo uoneoNP3 3l JO) UOREIOSSY UEBIUOIN SO/LL/Y
[euoneuwsaju| saullspy 198Ms S0/0L/Y
$310)S 9OUBJUIAUOYD) JO USSY [JN/UORBIOOSSY Wnajonad uebiyoin so/e/y
UORBIO0SSY UBBIUOIN - BOLBWIY JO S|BUOISSD)OId SSauisng S0/0Z/E
uoneioossy Buipeay uebIyIN S0/9L/E
uaJpliyD |euondaox3 1o} |1DUNOD UBBIYOIN SO/S/E
juswdojaaa( Jaaien Jo Juswpedag uebudiN S0/8/2
uoneloossy adeospuen pue AiasinN uebiuoin So/cL/L
anypsu| Aisnooay Buipeay uebiydiN So/L/L
uopejaidialu] JOj UOKRIDOSSY |eUOREN +0/12/L1
sAleN ¥0/8L/L1
spJeog |00YoS JO uopetoossy ueBiyoy 072711
sieyewlayseg UebIUI JO UORBIoOSSY 10/GZ/0L
SWIBYSAS JUsWaINaY aakojdw3 oljgnd Jo uoneroossy UebiyoiN +0/21/01
$10SS9001d 1B JO UORBIOOSSY Ueduawy +0/61/.L
uoneiodio) yaInyD ueAsisam +0/52/9
|euoneuwsaiu| ssullapy 199MS +0/2/S
sjeoyO ssauisng [(00yos UEBIYOIN 10/0E/Y
SSOINBG JoUBINQUIY JO UOKEIOoSSY UBBIYOIW $0/52/Y
$810}S S0UBJUIAUOY JO USSY [IN/UOREBIOOSSY Wnajonad uebiyoin +0/6/v
uappyd BunoA Jo UOREINPT BU} JOj LOREIDOSSY UBBIUOIN $0/82/E
Buiuiea ui siesn ABojouyda] pajejey-seIndwo) 1oy ussy I Y0/ L/E
uoREIDOSSY UBBIUDIN - EOUBWIY JO S[BUOISSDJ0Id SSaUISNg v0/L/€
ualpjiyD [euondaox3 Jo} PUnoD UeBIYIN 10/82/2
anysu| Asanoosy Buipeay UeBIYIN +0/€2/1
"OUj smoysapell €0/8/CL
SWEN JUNOIDY ajeq
pedag

co/ee8 payuld

90/L/E
90/1212
90/8/1
G0/6/1 1
S0/1LE/0}
S0/52/01
S0/L/8
SO/LLIS
S0/0L/S
so/ee/y
so/sely
S0/02/y
SO/ELY
so/Ly
SO/viy
S0/9L/E
So/LLie
So/L/e
S0/S/2
S0/6/4
SomviL
PO/SL/LY
$0/0L/L1
Yo/e/LL
+0/81/01
¥0/8/0}
YoreL/L
Y0/94L/9
0/62/¥
Y0/92/y
vo/Lely
vo/Siv
vo/veie
$0/8/€
yo/e/e
Yomwere
¥0/02/1
€0/82/11
ajeq
[BALUY




€86'115°1Z$

$58'09€$
229'L92'Cs
688'v61$
982'00Z$
LLL'PLYS
¥58'09¢$
6.1'¥S0'L$
198'eeY$
$55°20L$

b9l

68Z'L
520'8
¥69
SLL
Ly
G8c'L
GSL'€
S¥S'L
€8¢

oog‘tzt

ooL’e
00Z'c
000°}
00s'e
0os'e
00L'€
0052
00S'L
006

wnio4 uojes sAlew 2002

UOUBAUOY) [enuUY L00Z

€ uoibay |enuuy 2002

uonisodx3 apes] saye] 1ealo 2002

odx3 J19eN ULRS B 3|qEIebaA g saxe 1ealo 9002
wruo4 uojes SABW 9002

20UaI3jU0Y [eluuaig-aduabilanuod 9002

odx3 SW3 9002

UORUSAUOY) [enuuy 9002

i

sAlew L0/€2/01
UOHEIOOSSY SIauIe) JayaT jeiny |[euoheN L0/11/8
leuonjewssju| sauljepy 198MS L0/62/Y
uoneossy adeospueT] pue AuasinN uebiyoiN 20/LL/L
Kja100g [einynonloH s1els uebiyoiy 90/0L/2E
sAlew 90/L/L}
*OU| ‘BOUBWY JO P|iND S aAeampueH 90/v/.L
S30ISS SOURINGUIY JO UONEIO0SSY UBBIUOIN 90/EZ/¥
UOREIoOSSY JAIBM PUnoL9 UEBIYOIN 90/0E/€

L0/L1/10}
L0/1E/L
20/921v
L0/Ly
90/172}
90/L/L}
90/92/9
90/8LIY
90/5¢/e



Item VI.c.i.

NMENERANDUN

CITY OF GRAND RAPRPIDS

DATE: July 11, 2002

TO: Steve Heacock
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Finance Committee Chair

FROM: Jana M. Wallace 7}/‘/‘ l/\/

Fiscal Services Analyst

SUBJECT: Monthly Disbursements Report

Attached for your review are the lists of invoices processed for payment during the most
recent period. Expenditures are summarized below by fund.

Dates checks were issued Operating Fund Construction Fund
June 28, 2002 $ 27,487.63 $ 45546.57
July 15, 2002 52,349.74 5,741,794.14
Payroll — 06/14/2002 2,230.80 --
Payroll — 06/26/2002 2,093.00 -
Disbursements by Fund $ 84,161.17 $5,787,340.71

Total funds expended by the Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention / Arena Authority during
the period June 14 through July 15, 2002, were $5,871,501.88.

Please call me at 456-4514 if you need additional information.

Aftachments



205290 mwl spcAedoisaojonuieed

sasuadxa uononsuod-uou / bunesado =
sasuadxa paje(al uoloNIsuoD =

juswied 10} passad0id SOJ10AU| [ejJOL  0Z'PE0‘SL $
JUNO029y BupeiedO woij Juswhed J0) PSPIUIGNS SIII0AU| [BJOL  £9°28p°LZ $
JUNO22Y UORINAISUOD WO JuswAed 10} papILIgNS SBDI0AU| [eJOL  [S'9PS'Sy $
sodIMeS |edsid A1) Aq papiwgng S8d10AU| - S8DI0AU| [ejoL-qNS  €9°.8Y°LZ  $
daud juis feroueuy Joj peseyoind - 6¢-9¢ SIS GSYO Joj asunquiey  Z00Z/64/90 ov'zy ade|leM '\ euer
llosAed Zo/i71/90 40} SquIu0d sakojdwa/iakoidws - y1L0p SJ6W UlWpY  Z00Z/7L/90 00°0¥C uoneiodio) juswaidy YINOI
2002 A - Ja)uan) puels) J0) SSOIAISS JOMSS pue JBjep  2002/02/90 L9'¥89°L Jainseas] Ao spidey puelo
200Z Ae - 18)ua) puels Joj sadlAes [BOUOSI3  2002/90/90 zoeel'ee ABiou3 siewinsuo)
2002 ‘1.2 aunr papus pouad Joj seoines Buideayyoog  2002/L2/90  00'88E'C d11 Jspen susag
$92IAI98 [eds1d L3190 Aq papiwqng S3210AU|
JeBeue Josfoid Aq paniwqng S8dI0AU| - [BJOL-NS  IS'ObS‘'SY  $
Z0/L€/G0 NJYY L0/L0/L1 - Buninsuod swajsAs suopesunwwod  2002/€0/90 0s'.22'y ou| Buyinsuod yYnQg Hagoy
200¢2/90/90 nuy} mwm._mco Ococn_ Jejnjjad ww>_umuc0w0.59 S JouUMQ 200¢/90/90 LL'2S) suoedIUNWWOD [9IX8N
200Z Ae - seoinues aseyd uononysuod  200zZ/c1/90 91'8¢2'6¢ ou| sjueynsuo) Buysa] s[eusie
200Z ABN - USIDM B J9JUSD pUuBIO 81 SBJIAJSS [BOIUYDRJ08D)  ZOOZ/EL/90 08626l  $ ou| sjueynsuo) Bunsa | sjeusiep
JoBeuey 198load Aq papiwgng S3910AU|
paAledel sed]Ales | peJinboe sjelsjew jo uonduossaqg ajeq junowy ooAed
9210AU)

foljog4 Buidaapioog Juaiung ayl Aq pazuoyny se ‘200z ‘8z dunr Uo juswAed Joj Passad0ld Sa0I0AU] JO ISIT
ALRIOHLNY VNIAUV / NOLLNIANOD ALNNOD LN3IX - SAIdVYH ANVYO

o)
o)

O000O0

(OCRORONS)



200420 mwl spcAedojsadioauieed

spun4 Qiuoyiny wouy Juawied 10 pajwiqng sa310AU| €301

Juno29y Bunesado woij JuswAhed 1oy pspRiLIGNS SI210AU| [BIJOL
JUNO029Y UOHIONIISUO) WOIS Judwhed J0j papiwIgnS S9D10AU] [B30L

88'evL'v6L'6 S

vlevees ¢

pLY6LIYLSS

sasuadxa buniesado ; uolonISUOI-UoN = O
sesuadxa pajejal uoIJoNISU0d JajUaD UOHUBAUOD = O

$99IM9S [edsld A1) Aq papiwigng Sadl0AU| - S8D10AU| [eJOL-qnS  pL'6ve'eS  $
Bunesw Zooz ‘9z aunr 1oy sydeus / sebesaneg  2002/92/90  89'/C 20IMRS @9j0D JoH pidey O
Z00z ‘I AInp - Jebeuew aARelISIUILPE JO) S}JOUS] BOUBINSU|  Z00Z/PC/90  S0'8.2 uiesH Aioud O
2002 aunf - S9OIAISS Wesjs BUBIY  200Z/0E€/90  60°/8E'6 SHOM 2llqnd jo idag AunoQ sy O
Z00Z dunf - SAVIAISS We)S JSjua) puelD  Z0OZ/0E/90  81°096°L SHIOM dlland Joideq fiunop ey O
Z00Z aunp - s9oIAI9S Wes)s ylemMlS  Z00Z/0€/90 0001 SHOM 2lland jJo idag AunoQ ey O
llo1Ked 20/92/90 40} squuod dakojdwaiekoldwa - viOp sJ6W ulwpy  Z002/92/90  00°0¥C uonjesodio) JuswalIleY VWOI O
200Z 8unf - BUBIY IO SROIAISS JBJBM  2002/€0/L0  SO'901 Jainsess| Ao spidey puein O
Z00Z dunp - BUdlY JO) SSDIAISS JOMSS pue JaJepM 2002/82/90 06'088'€ Jainseal] A)0 spidey puelo (o)
2002 Ael - sisjew [esauab o) seoines BB Z00Z/02/90  0S°€SS OT1d Wbup uosudpIda O
Z00Z aunr - jjemAYS 10 SaOIAJSS [BOUIOBIT  Z00Z/S2/90  98'Cvb'E ABisugy siewnsuod O
Z00Z 8unf - Bualy 0} SBOIAISS [BOMJORIT  Z002/S2/90  LE'EOP'EE ABisug s;swnsuo) O
sao1Meg |easld £31) Aq papiwgng Sad10AU|
JobBeuep j0afoid Aq pspiwqng sadloAu| - [ejoL-qNS  YL'PEL'LYL'S$
200z aunr - saolnes Juawabeuew oslold  2002/82/90  00°096°L1E H?8eq 'siswwos D
2002 Ae|y - aAnejussaidal sjosliyole ayis-uQ  2002/€L/90  00°08Y'8sl Jyanssalbold O
200z Aep - sebueyo pajsenbal JouMQO  Z00Z/EL/90  €9'8LL'TL Jvanssalbold O
200z ‘9z - €2 dunr - Buidwnp |los pajeulwejuod  200Z/L0/L0  8206F'S llypuey Qunop emeno O
200z aunr - seoiaas Juawsebeuew osflold  Z002/20/20  00°S89°LL ou| Bupinsuop keso 4 O
20/20/90 - ZO/L L/SO - ||em pooj3 J18judd uoludAuod a1 Buussuibug  Z0ozZ/BL/90  €2°SLO°L ou| JaqnH B JeD ‘uosdwioyy] Hoaqusly D
61 # uawAhed ssaiboid Joj abeuteley  200Z/0€/90  00°20L‘8Zy junodoy afeutelsy Yv/O OM-¥49 O
uoneouqey / [esausb / [99)s - uoonsuo) 61 # lwd ssaiboid  Z00Z/0€/90  00'EY6'ZST'S$ SINJUSA JUIOF Y JUNH -3pieys3 D
JobBeueyy yooloid Aq pa)jiuqng S3210AU|
pPaAledal $89jAl0S | palinboe sjelisjew jo uondudsaQq ajeq junowy oolAed
9210AU|

foij04 Buidesyyoog juaing ay} Aq pazuoyiny se ‘Z200Z ‘SL AN uo Juswied 10} passa00.d S82I0AUJ JO ISIT
ALRIOHLNY YN3YV / NOILNISANOD ALNNOD LN3X - SAIdVY ANVYO



Item Vl.c.i.

NVENERANDUN

CITY OF GRAND RAPRPIDS

DATE: August 9, 2002

TO: Steve Heacock
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Finance Committee Chair

FROM:  Jana M. Wallace W
Fiscal Services Analyst

SUBJECT: Monthly Disbursements Report

Attached for your review are the lists of invoices processed for payment during the most
recent period. Expenditures are summarized below by fund.

Dates checks were issued Operating Fund Construction Fund
July 29, 2002 $ 29,902.91 $ 769,208.54
August 14, 2002 59,625.72 4,958,465.66
Payroll — 07/12/2002 2,223.20 -

Payroll — 07/26/2002 2,093.00 -
Payroil — 08/09/2002 2,203.20 --
Disbursements by Fund $ 95,948.03 $5,727,674.20

Total funds expended by the Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention / Arena Authority during
the period July 12 through August 14, 2002, were $5,823,622.23.

Please call me at 456-4514 if you need additional information.

Attachments



2082.L0 muwf six'gohedojsauieed

sasuadxa uononJisuod-uou ; Buesado = O
sesuadxa paje|al uoonisuo) = 9

juswAed 10} passad0ld SadloAU| [e30L  SP'LLL'66L $
junoday BuneladQ woyy Juswhed Joj papiwqng sadloAu| fejol  L6'206'6Z $
JUNOY9Y UOHIINIISUOY WO JuswiAed JO) pajjiwqng Sa210AU| [ejJol  $5°802'69.L $
s90IMeS [es]d L3190 Aq papiwqng SadjoAU| - S8D10AU| [BJOL-GNS  L6°'206'62  $
losAed 20/Z1/L0 104 Squu02 8akojdwayiaholdws - vI0p SJ6W uiWpY  2002/21L/L0 00°0%2 uopelodio juswaidy YINOI o]
200z AInr - J8jua) puelS IO} SIOIAISS JOM3S puB Ja)lBM  2002/52/L0 €goLe'e Jainseas] Ao spidey pues O
200z Joquialdas - Anr - eualy Joj sul| Jajem uonosijoid a4 Z00Z/60/.0  68'80L Jainseas} Ao spidey puels O
200Z 3unf - Yoe - Y|emANS 104 S8OIAISS Jamas pue JsleM  Z00Z/60/L0  Ov'Sh jainseal) Ao spidey puels O
Z00Z 1aquisydas - AInp - YiemAxS Joj sul) Jejem uogosjoid alld  2002/60/L0  S2OE Jainseas) Ao spidey puels QO
Z00Z aunp - J8jua) puelo) Joj S3VIAISS |BOLIORIT  2002/80/.0 ¥G'L91°0C ABiouzg siswnsuoy O
s90IAI9S [e0s1d A)1D Aq papjwqng S8d]0AU]
JeBeueyy j0ofoid Aq papiugng s9010AU| - [BJOL-NS  $5°802°69L $
2002 aunr - solydedsb [ejuswuoliAug  2002/GL/L0 LG'6TS'6 ayeassalbold O
200z aunf - aAlejussaldel sjos)yose aYis-uQ  Z00Z/S1/L0 05°Zvs'el 3v anssalboid 0
200z aunr - sabueyo pajsanbas ssumQ  200Z/LL/L0 WyLL'YS 3v aAissaiboid 0
200z aunr - saolAies ubisap |eanjoa)ydly  2002/8L/L0 GL'SPL'OL) 3v aAissaiboid 0
200z Ae - seoinuas ubisap [einosjiyoly  2002/€1/90 L'295 0vs 3v anissalboid 0
2002 ‘L1 - L Ainp - Buidwnp (los pajeuiwejuod  2002/0Z/L0 SL0LLL flypue Auno) emeno 0
2002/90/20 niyy sabieys suoyd Jejn|ao saAnejuasaidal sjoumQ  2002/80/20 65'v02 suonesIuNWWo?) |9IXaN o)
200z @unr - saojaues aseyd uononisuod  Z00Z/60/.L0 96'866'0¢ U] sjueynsuo Buysa sieusiey 0
20/£0/90 - OL/¥0 - M31A31 pue ubisap wajshs Aiuindas  2002/50/L0 00°002°L sisAg unoagyaii4 Jebulliel © Ausp 0
JobBeueyy j00loid Aq peniwgng S3d0AU|
paAladal $adiAles | palinboe sjeuejew jo uondudsaQq ajeq junowy a9Aed
8310AU|

£o1j104 Buideayyoog jusiing ayy Aq pazuoyiny se ‘2002 ‘62 AN uo juswied 10j pasSsad0id SSOI0AU| JO IS
ALROHLNY YNIYHV / NOILNIANOD ALNNOD LN3M - SAIdVY ANVYO



206080 mwl sjx'Aedojsasioaurees

jusuwifed 10} passad0id SaJI0AU] [B}O |

sasuadxa bunerado ; uooNIISUOI-UON =
sasuadxa paje[al UoIJoNJISUoD JAJua)) UOIJUSAUOY =

8€°166°L10'S$

3UN029y BupeiadO wodj Juswhed J0j papiuIgng S9JI0AU| [e)JO1  Z.°6Z66S S
JUNO2DY UONINIISUOYD W) Judtuhed 10} PaJIIGNS SIJI0AU] [BI0L  99°G9P°8S6'vS
S90IAI9S [edsld A1) Aq paplwqng Sadl0AU| - S8DI0AU| [B}OL-qNS  ZL'G2ZG'6S  $
2002 ‘I 1snbny - Jabeuew aAyeyisiulwpe 1o} s)jauaq soueInsul  ZOOZ/LO/80  S0'8.2 uiesH Auoud
abpupeo seuo) Jalulld  200Z/LE/L0 €209 JodaQ 80440
200z AInr - seolAies wesjs eualy  200Z/LE/LO  S2TE0L'EL SHIOM 21jand Jo ideg AunoD jus)
200z AInr - s@o1AIes Wwes)s Jejua) puelo  200Z/LE/L0 00°86€'C SHIOM 21jand Jo 3deq AunoD jJua)
2002 AInr - saoinies weays ylemANS  Z00Z/LE/L0 0001 SHIOM 211and jo 1dag Auno) Jus)
2002 AInf - eualy Joj SROIAIBS JSJBM  200Z/L0/80  LL'89L Jainsesl | Ayo spidey puer9
Z00Z AN - Bualy JOJ SBOIAISS JOMSS puB JS)BM  2002/10/80 Lsove'e Jainseal] A)) spidey pueio
2002 AInp - dlemAxS Joj seoInles [BOlO8|T  2002/S2/L0  TL'E€T6'C ABiau3 s1;ewnsuo)
2002 AInf - BUBlY JO) SBOIAISS [BOLIOB|T  Z00Z/92/L0  6T°LE€6'9E ABiau3 si8wiNsuo
3|qioNpap aourINSU) 8sINquial - 391 Y[emg Aq pabewep oiny  2002/0€/20  00°002 alne ‘I9j|enwiny
s90JAIg |edsty 1D Aq pepiwqng sadloAu|
JesuiBu3 A1) Aq peplwqng sadloAu| - [eJoL-qNS  OV'PLS'VL  $
2002 sunp - sjuawanocidw) aAy 20Juopy O} pajejal saoines |efa]  200Z/81/20 ov'ELl UuoSpJeydIY '® SIoyieap meT
1002 ‘62 - | Jequiadag Jaqy 1 O - sedines Buusauibug  100Z/€Z/0L  00°L9F'vl U] Yyoe8j099
Jeauibug A9 Aq pepiwgng $a210AU|
Jabeue j09foad Aq papiwgng S9010AU| - BJ01-GNS  9Z°L68‘EVE'YS
200z Ainr - seoinies Juswebeuew josfold  2002/L€/Z0  00°0¥0°LI H 8leq 's;awwos
2002 ‘62 - 2z AInr - Buidwnp |i0s pajeutwejuod  Z0OZ/LE/L0  TYPEE'S flypue] Hunod emeno
2002/90/80 nJy) sabieyd auoyd Jejn|j9o saAnejuasaidal sJaumQ 2002/¥0/80 €091 suonedIuUNWWoY) [3)XaN
200z Ainr -- ma1Aa1 pue ubisep wajsAs Ajunodeg  200zZ/10/80  00°002'8 sisAg undagy/aiid ebulljed © Ausp
200z AInf - seoines Juswabeuew josfold  2002/L0/80  0S°L02°CL ou| Buginsuo) Aeio d r
02 # uawAed ssaiboid Jo) abeuleley  200Z/LE/L0  00'G65'68C Junoooy abeulelay Yv/O OM-HO
uonedlqey/essualbyiomuol - uononsuoy 0z # jwd ssalboid 2002/1£/20 00 v69'LYS'Y AINJUBA JUIOr Y JUNH - Jpieys]
€0/L0/L0 - TO/L0/L0 J0§ @oUBINSUI XS SIBP|INQ MBUSY  ZO0Z/E2/L0  00°099'LL § sa1ouaby soueinsu| suQ 8210y
Jobeueyy yo0oload Aq papiwgnsg S9210AU|
PoOAI3Ja] $321A13S | palinboe sjeudjew Jo uondudsaq ajeq junoury a9hed
9010AU|

foijod Buideaxoog Juanng ay) Aq pazuoyiny se ‘200z ‘vL 1shbny uo JuswAied Joj passa00id SS210AU| JO IsI
ALIJOHLNY YN3YV / NOILNIANOD ALNNOD LN3X - SAIdVY ANVHO

o
0

O00000000O0

(ORONONORGRONONS)



GRAND CENTER

FINANCIAL STATEMENT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

#++PRELIMINARY STATEMENTS***

Distribution:

Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Robert White

Glen Mon

Bob Johnson

Gary McAneney

John Szudzik

Richard MacKeigan

Chris Machuta

An SMG Managed Faclilty

Item Vl.c.ii.



NO. EVENTS
ATTENDANCE

DIRECT EVENT REVENUE
ANCILLARY REVENUE

TOTAL EVENT REVENUE
TOTAL OTHER REVENUE
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE
INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE
FINANCE
MARKETING
OPERATIONS
EVENT SERVICES
BOX OFFICE
OVERHEAD

TOTAL OPERATING EXP,
NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES
CAPITAL

NET OPERATING REVENUE OVER
OPERATING EXPENSES

*ESTIMATED*™
MANAGEMENT FEE CALCULATION

BENCHMARK REVENUES
PROJECTED REVENUES

PROJECTED INCREASE

20% OF FIRST $500,000
25% OF $500,000 AND ABOVE

TOTAL INCENTIVE FEE
TOTAL BASE F/Y 2002

TOTAL FEE FOR F/Y 2002

€« €&

©® P @ &

A

1,769,531
2,193,448

423,917

84,783

84,783
225,000

309,783

GRAND CENTER

ROLLING FORECAST - YE 6/30/02

SUMMARY
TOTAL BUDGET
YTD Actual FYE FYE VARIANCE
384 384 318 66
490,444 490,444 494,970 (4,526)
1,478,000 1,478,000 1,133,612 344,388
597,270 §97,270 499,919 97,351
2,075,270 - 2,075,270 1,633,531 441,739
118,178 118,178 136,000 (17.822)
2,193,448 - 2,193,448 1,769,531 423,917
91,169 91,169 81,433 9 736
130,592 130,692 145,356 1(4:764)
39,064 39,964 139,854 99,890
506,688 506,688 445,575 (61,113)
370,084 370,084 417,843 47,758
49,917 49,917 60,682 10,765
1,027,763 1,027,763 984,945 (42,818)
2,216,175 - 2,216,177 2,275,688 59,511
(22,729) - {22,729) (506,167) 483,428
47,841 - 47,841 173,850 (126,009)
(70,570) - (70,570) (680,007) 609,437

Comments:

June concludes a very successful year for the Grand Center. While
the facility lost money for the fiscal year, the performance exceeded
all expectations. DeVos Performance Hall was the driving force
behind the success with its most successful year on record.

inance Dlregy



GRAND CENTER
FINANCIAL STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS
FOR MONTH ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

The following schedule summarizes operating results for the month ending
and the YTD ending June 30, 2002, compared to budget and to the

prior year:
MONTH June June June

Actual Budget FY 2001
Number of Events 18 8 35
Attendance 17,320 11,000 41,466
Direct Event Income $76,828 $15,790 $22,012
Ancillary Income 27,922 9,119 9,451
Other Income 4,766 11,337 12,961
Indirect Expenses (192,226) (189,633) (220,421)
Net Income ($82,710) ($153,387) ($175,998)
YTD YTD 2002 YTD 2002 YTD 2001

Actual Budget Prior Year
Number of Events 384 318 388
Attendance 490,444 495,720 501,669
Direct Event Income 1,478,000 1,133,612 1,417,693
Anciilary Income 597,270 499,919 633,565
Other Income 118,178 136,000 117,554
Indirect Expenses (2,216,178) (2,275,695) (2,167,199)
Net Income ($22,729) ($506,164) $1,613
Less Capital ($47,841) ($63,339)
Net Income after Capital ($70,570) ($569,503) $1,613

EVENT INCOME

Event income came in above expectations for the month as the Broadways presentation
of Blast occurred in June versus May when originally budgeted. NCS Pearson is running

a multiple week training session that is renting a large portion of the facility and booked less
than one week out also contributed a large revenue increase in June.

ANCILLARY INCOME

Angillary income came in higher than expected for the month due to the two events
mentioned above.

INDIRECT EXPENSES

Indirect expenses came in at expected levels for the month.




GRAND CENTER
FACILITY STATEMENT OF INCOME
PERIOD ENDING 06/30/02

----------------- CURRENT----==cemresrnacacee occcccecmnammaceefDencrmvcuecnacncnonan.
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
EVENT INCOME
DIRECT EVENT INCOME
RENTAL INCOME 78,341 16,400 21,740 1,443,971 1,115,635 1,392,357
SERVICES INCOME <1,513> <610> 272 34,030 17,977 25,336
TOTAL DIRECT EVENT INCOME 76,828 15,7980 22,012 1,478,000 1,133,612 1,417,693
ANCILLARY INCOME
FOOD & BEVERAGE 11,710 2,884 5,527 204,274 178,025 260,989
NOVELTY 4,758 800 178 43,809 18,712 18,963
TELECOMMUNICATIONS 908 0 0 9,422 0 0
ELECTRICAL 594 100 o} 33,402 19,640 0
OTHER ANCILLARY 9,952 5,335 3,745 306,363 283,542 353,612
TOTAL ANCILLARY INCOME 27,922 9,119 9,451 597,270 499,919 633,565
TOTAL EVENT INCOME 104,750 24,909 31,463 2,075,270 1,633,531 2,051,258
OTHER OPERATING INCOME 4,766 11,337 12,961 118,178 136,000 117,554
ADJUSTED GROSS INCOME 109,516 36,246 44,423 2,193,449 1,769,531 2,168,812
INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE 7,186 6,787 5,036 91,169 81,433 41,734
FINANCE 10,062 12,102 9,142 130,592 145,356 126,222
MARKETING 2,401 11,671 13,601 39,964 139,854 97,539
OPERATIONS 37,459 37,136 125,304 506,688 445,577 845,820
EVENT MANAGEMENT 36,121 34,825 s} 370,084 417,845 0
BOX OFFICE 4,811 5,045 2,796 49,917 60,683 36,118
OVERHEAD 94,187 82,067 64,542 1,027,763 984,947 1,019,765
INDIRECT EXPENSES 192,226 189,633 220,421 2,216,178 2,275,695 2,167,199
NET OPERATING INCOME <82,710> <153,387> <175,998> <22,729> <506,164> 1,613
OTHER EXPENSES
OTHER EXPENSE (INCOME) 0 [+] 3,507 47,841 63,339 3,507
OTHER EXPENSES 0 0 3,507 47,841 63,339 3,507
NET INCOME (LOSS) <82,710> <153,387> <179,505> <70,571> <569,503> <1,894>




Advertising Billed
Stagehands Billed

Security Billed

Ushers & Tix Takers Billed
Box Office Billed
Ticketing Service Billed
Utilities Billed

City Police Fire Billed
Traffic Control Billed
EMT Medical Billed
Cleaning Billed

Insurance Billed

Group Sales Commissions Billed
Telephone Billed

Damages Billed

Other Production Billed

TOTAL SERVICE INCOME

Advertising Expense
Stagehand Wages

Security Wages

Contracted Security Expense
Ushers & T/T Wages

Ticket Sellers Wages

Ticket Service Charge Expense
City Police Fire Expense
Traffic Control Expense
EMT Medical Expense
Cleaning Wages

Contracted Cleaning Expense
Insurance Expense

Damage Expense

Production Expense

TOTAL SERVICE EXPENSE

NET SERVICE INCOME

GRAND CENTER

STATEMENT OF SERVICES INCOME

PERIOD ENDING 06/30/02

---------------- CURRENT-~=-v-nmmmana-===e ==ceec---asves=YEAR TO DATE----=-----=--

ACTUAL BUDGET  LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET  LAST YEAR
0 () 0 111,923 0 30,213
50,875 13,000 6,383 842,217 590, 800 637,619
14,872 950 644 120,089 91,920 87,608
5,328 2,000 3,413 145,527 138,457 129,567
800 200 o 25,327 19,900 18,050
7,032 2,000 855 187,673 129,080 132,140
0 0 1,800 5,470 ()} 11,115
992 0 0 21,313 15, 680 22,149
0 0 a4 19,138 8,020 12,107
592 250 379 23,581 22,191 19,193
0 0 o 2,770 0 1,565
0 0 263 1,275 0 2,449
0 0 0 889 0 o
1,270 0 495 12,849 150 7,177
0 0 0 71 0 0
1,289 0 1,798 68,153 0 26,487
83,150 18,400 16,073 1,588,264 1,016,198 1,197,437
153 0 0 102,918 0 29,194
52,168 12,610 6,739 838,971 573,083 656,356
0 0 644 7,722 2,930 88,669
14,872 950 o 112,382 88,990 0
3,730 1,400 2,389 101,869 96, 765 90,697
234 . 300 156 17,636 29,688 27,214
3,601 700 180 65,703 29,889 15,363
992 o 0 21,313 15,680 22,351
96 o 259 36,893 15, 660 30,207
465 250 256 17,243 22,191 14,429
7,300 2,800 3,367 159,916 123,345 151,229
0 0 0 2,083 0 0
0 0 210 899 0 2,000
0 () 0 0 o0 420
1,054 0 1,601 68,687 0 23,975
84,663 19,010 15,801 1,554,234 998,221 1,172,101
<1,513> <610> 272 14,030 17,977 25,336




GRAND CENTER
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
PERIOD ENDING 06/30/02

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
CASH
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
PREPAID EXPENSES

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

FIXED ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
ACCRUED EXPENSES
ADVANCED TIX SALES & DEPOSITS

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

EQUITY

FUNDING RECEIVED
RETAINED EARNINGS
NET INCOME (LOSS)

TOTAL EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

1,768,803
235,707
68,481

2,072,991

assuonmasooas

706,300
131,839
276,564

482,941
545,916
<70,569>

2,072,991



GRAND CENTER
INDIRECT EXPENSE SUMMARY
PERIOD ENDING 06/30/02

----------------- CURRENT-=-=~-mmmme-wemece cccccsecccasrmcrn-=YD--cc-ccnsccccunmnncax

ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR

Salaries Administration 41,424 46,695 35,340 S10, 949 560,450 358,686
Part-Time 7,966 10,746 11,344 157,300 128,897 147,445
Wages-Trade 69,440 72,356 47,659 1,087,688 868,184 964, 941
Auto Expense 1,521 1,769 1,321 17,900 21,250 14,050
Taxes & Benefits 23,905 26,798 17,018 329,856 321,730 284,895

Less: Allocation/Reimbursement <74,069> <86,177> <20,725> <1,255,747> <1,034,003> <1,029,878>
TOTAL LABOR COSTS 70,187 72,187 91,958 847,946 866,508 740,140
Contracted Security 5,106 5,200 1,919 54,538 62,400 50,297
other Contracted Services 186 178 160 2,041 2,100 1,691
Travel & Entertainment 1,114 774 <l,428> 6,811 9,200 1,587
Corporate Travel 1,975 307 [} 4,313 3,750 3,331
Meetings & Conventions 424 1,649 520 9,820 19,700 5,537
Dues & Subscriptions 0 149 0 1,525 1,700 1,710
Employee Training 0 763 0 459 9,200 124
Miscellaneous Expense 0 [ 0 66 0 110
Computer Expense 2,438 5,313 4,034 32,476 63,800 42,105
Professional Fees 1,661 1,663 400 20,414 20,000 12,775
Marketing & Advertising 30 837 6,074 10,249 10,000 15,421
Box Office Expenses 30 0 <183> 595 0 <155
Small Equipment 0 0 0 0 0 813
Trash Removal 349 2,663 1,235 12,644 32,000 16,747
Equipment Rental ' 151 350 188 3,235 - 4,200 4,975
Landscaping 0 0 0 0 0 4,045
Snow Removal 0 0 0 169 0 1,751
Exterminating 37s aso 750 4,808 4,200 6,010
Cleaning 0 625 318 613 7,500 6,791
Construction Costs 0 0 1,114 1,350 0 2,249
Repairs & Maintenance 9,405 8,587 40,771 122,534 103,000 138,161
supplies 9,403 11,270 4,083 89,864 135, 240 139,647
Bank Service Charges 610 625 799 12,527 7,500 16,461
Insurance 12,858 8,584 16,983 123,808 102,997 141,178
Other Taxes 0 300 [+] 0 3,600 2,535
Printing & Stationary 0 924 135 1,224 11,000 3,117
Office Supplies 20 625 3,080 7,447 7,500 11,001
Postage 444 250 222 1,582 3,000 1,865
Parking Expense 1,502 1,163 2,982 20,316 14,000 19,205
Telephone Long Distance 2,874 2,550 9,937 30,080 30,600 49,185
Utilities 24,434 43,000 9,642 482,941 516,000 524,867
Base Fee 18,750 18,750 14,791 225,000 225,000 176,029
Incentive Fee 27,899 0 9,937 84,784 0 25,755
TOTAL MATERIAL AND SERVICES 122,040 117,446 128,463 1,368,232 1,409,187 1,427,059
TOTAL INDIRECT EXPENSES 192,226 189,633 220,421 2,216,178 2,275,695 2,167,199




GRAND CENTER

FINANCIAL STATEMENT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JULY 31, 2002

Distribution:

Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Robert White

Glen Mon

Bob Johnson

Gary McAneney

John Szudzik

Richard MacKeigan

Chris Machuta

An SMG Managed Facllity

Item Vl.c.ii.



GRAND CENTER
ROLLING FORECAST

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2002

NO. EVENTS
ATTENDANCE

DIRECT EVENT REVENUE
ANCILLARY REVENUE

TOTAL EVENT REVENUE
TOTAL OTHER REVENUE
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE
INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE
FINANCE
MARKETING
OPERATIONS
EVENT SERVICES
BOX OFFICE
OVERHEAD

TOTAL OPERATING EXP.
NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES
CAPITAL

NET OPERATING REVENUE OVER
OPERATING EXPENSES

Comments:

July starts the new fiscal year for the Grand Center. The peformance
for the month was much better than budgeted as the Grand Center
continued to host the training/hiring event for the Airport. This event

ended up using the facility for a total of 19 days during July. While this
event gives the Grand Center a very good head start to the fiscal year,

itis still early in the year to make any changes to the projected fiscal

year end expectations.

TOTAL BUDGET
YTD Actual Roll FYE FYE VARIANCE
28 277 305 305 -
5,400 443,907 449,307 449,307 -
144,536 1,153,269 1,297,805 1,297,805 -
23,416 467,638 491,054 491,054 -
167,952 1,620,907 1,788,859 1,788,859 -
6,162 196,848 203,000 203,000 -
174,104 1,817,755 1,991,859 1,991,859 -
6,860 79,204 86,064 86,064 -
11,021 131,829 142,850 142,850 -
2,448 144,399 146,847 146,847 -
24,719 456,260 480,979 480,979 -
32173 415,440 447,613 447 613 -
5,351 52,074 57,425 67,425 -
58,947 931,102 990,049 990,049 -
141,519 2,210,308 2,351,827 2,351,831 -
32,587 (392,553) (359,968) (359,972) -
62,000 62,000 62,000 -
32,587 (454,553) (421,968) (421,972) -
Gener, ager /
Finance Difector” ]



GRAND CENTER
FINANCIAL STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS
FOR MONTH ENDED JULY 31, 2002

The following schedule summarizes operating results for the current month ending
and the YTD ending June 30, 2003, compared to budget and to the prior year:

MONTH July July July

Actual Budget FY 2002
Number of Events 28 8 22
Attendance 5,400 5,607 11,060
Direct Event Income $144,536 $27,523 $29,561
Ancillary Income 23,416 6,278 12,392
Other Income 6,152 16,917 6,722
Indirect Expenses (141,518) (196,511) (155,066)
Net Income $32,587 ($145,793) ($106,391)
YTD YTD 2003 YTD 2003 YTD 2002

Actual Budget Prior Year
Number of Events 28 8 22
Attendance 5,400 5,507 11,060
Direct Event Income $144,536 $27,523 $29,561
Ancillary Income 23,416 6,278 12,392
Other Income 6,152 16,917 6,722
Indirect Expenses (141,518) (196,511) (155,066)
Net Income $32,586 ($145,793) ($106,391)
Less Capital
Net Income after Capital $32,586 ($145,793) ($106,391)

EVENT INCOME

Event income came in above expected levels for the month as the Training/Hiring event
continued to use the facility during July when the event was unbudgeted. Other events

hosted during the month performed at expected levels.

ANCILLARY INCOME

Ancillary income came in above expected levels for the month due to much the same
reasons as above. In addition, the Grand Center has been experimenting with offering
wireless internet access to shows. This event had $8,000 in extra income that would not
have been made if this event was hosted 6 months ago.

INDIRECT EXPENSES

Indirect expenses came in below expectations for the month. Given the success of last
fiscal year, some additional supplies were purchased to help the 1st quarter of the current
fiscal year.




GRAND CENTER
FACILITY STATEMENT OF INCOME
PERIOD ENDING 07/31/02

----------------- CURRENT---=--=-ccmccemeacuan cocencmcrcncncaccYTDo"omomrmec e anaeaae
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
EVENT INCOME
DIRECT EVENT INCOME
RENTAL INCOME 148,815 30,625 33,413 148,815 30,625 33,413
SERVICES INCOME <4,280> <3,102> <3,852> <4,280> <3,102> <3,852>
TOTAL DIRECT EVENT INCOME 144,536 27,523 29,561 144,536 27,523 29,561
ANCILLARY INCOME
FOOD & BEVERAGE 5,592 1,075 5,623 5,592 1,075 5,623
NOVELTY 0 0 490 0 0 490
ELECTRICAL 84 200 0 84 200 0
OTHER ANCILLARY 17,740 5,003 6,280 17,740 5,003 6,280
TOTAL ANCILLARY INCOME 23,416 6,278 12,392 23,416 6,278 12,392
TOTAL EVENT INCOME 167,952 33,801 41,953 167,952 33,801 41,953
OTHER OPERATING INCOME 6,152 16,917 6,722 6,152 16,917 6,722
ADJUSTED GROSS INCOME 174,104 50,718 48,675 174,104 50,718 48,675
INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE 6,860 7,172 3,465 6,860 7,172 3,465
FINANCE 11,021 11,904 8,005 11,021 11,904 8,005
MARKETING 2,448 12,236 3,409 2,448 12,236 3,409
OPERATIONS 24,719 40,083 67,553 24,719 40,083 67,553
EVENT MANAGEMENT 32,173 37,826 <617> 32,173 37,826 <617>
BOX OFFICE 5,351 4,785 3,006 5,351 4,785 3,006
OVERHEAD 58,947 82,505 70,245 58,947 82,505 70,245
INDIRECT EXPENSES 141,518 196,511 155,066 141,518 196,511 155,066
NET OPERATING INCOME 32,587 <145,793> <106,391> 32,587 <145,793> <106,391>
OTHER EXPENSES
NET INCOME (LOSS) 32,587 <145,793> <106,391> 32,587 <145,793> <106,391>




GRAND CENTER
STATEMENT OF SERVICES INCOME
PERIOD ENDING 07/31/02

---------------- CURRENT----=-~----=-cc-e- cce-ec--------YEAR TO DATE-------------

ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
Advertising Billed 0 [] 4,352 0 0 4,352
Stagehands Billed 10,542 4,950 18,773 10,542 4,950 18,773
Security Billed 842 500 1,176 842 500 1,176
Ushers & Tix Takers Billed 1,998 0 3,917 1,998 [+] 3,917
Box Office Billed 950 0 300 950 [ 300
Ticketing Service Billed 0 0 3,770 0 0 3,770
City Police Fire Billed 0 0 713 0 0 713
Traffic Control Billed 0 300 0 0 300 0
EMT Medical Billed 495 200 318 495 200 315
Telephone Billed 2,615 0 198 2,615 0 195
Other Production Billed 120 0 2,392 120 0 2,392
TOTAL SERVICE INCOME 17,561 5,950 35,903 17,561 5,950 35,903
Advertising Expense 0 0 4,352 0 ] 4,352
Stagehand Wages 10,188 4,802 18,633 10,188 4,802 18,633
Security Wages 0 0 1,187 0 0 1,187
Contracted Security Expense 842 500 0 842 500 0
Ushers & T/T Wages 1,399 0 2,742 1,399 0 2,742
Ticket Sellers Wages 398 [+] 78 398 0 78
Ticket Service Charge Expense 0 0 1,412 0 0 1,412
City Police Fire Expense 0 0 713 0 0 713
Traffic Control Expense 346 350 548 346 350 548
EMT Medical Expense 369 200 256 369 200 256
Cleaning Wages 8,262 3,200 8,551 8,262 3,200 8,551
Production Expense 37 0 1,284 37 0 1,284
TOTAL SERVICE EXPENSE 21,841 9,052 39,755 21,841 9,052 39,755

NET SERVICE INCOME <4,280> <3,102> <3,852> <4,280> <3,102> <3,852>




GRAND CENTER

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:
CASH
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
PREPAID EXPENSES
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
CONTRACT RIGHTS
TOTAL INTANGIBLE ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITY & EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
ACCRUED EXPENSES
ADVANCED DEPOSITS
REFUND LIABILITY
ADVANCED TICKET SALES
TOTAL CURRENT LIAB.

FUND EQUITY
FUNDING TO CITY - CASH
FUNDING FROM CITY - NON CASH
CURRENT YEAR EARNINGS
RETAINED EARNINGS
TOTAL FUND EQUITY

TOTAL LIAB & EQUITY

JULY 31, 2002

1,975,785
409,904
74,161

902,286
133,830
200,055

7,236
198,465

30,709
32,587

954,683
1,017,979

2,459,851

2,459,851

1,441,872

2,459,851



GRAND CENTER
INDIRECT EXPENSE SUMMARY
PERIOD ENDING 07/31/02

----------------- CURRENT----vncccmccccmccs mcceccmcccencccceaeYTD------cmmmmmcmmme o
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
Salaries Administration 43,303 46,990 27,163 43,303 46,990 27,163
Part-Time 4,732 11,275 5,988 4,732 11,278 5,988
Wages-Trade 33,595 95,565 43,400 33,595 95,565 43,400
Auto Allowance 0 615 0 0 615 0
Auto Expense 1,521 1,201 1,321 1,521 1,201 1,321
Taxes & Benefits 16,812 30,108 16,595 16,812 30,108 16,595
Less: Allocation/Reimbursement <31,198> <104,176> <38,077> <31,198> <104,176> <38,077>
TOTAL LABOR COSTS 68,764 81,578 56,389 68,764 81,578 56,389
Contracted Security 4,792 5,000 2,170 4,792 5,000 2,170
Other Contracted Services 186 183 0 186 183 0
Travel & Entertainment [¢] 792 15 0 792 15
Corporate Travel 0 333 0 0 333 0
Meetings & Conventions 0 1,613 736 0 1,613 736
Dues & Subscriptions 0 160 1] 0 160 0
Employee Training 0 833 0 0 833 [
Computer Expense 2,429 5,417 1,992 2,429 5,417 1,992
Professional Fees 1,650 1,730 1,125 1,650 1,730 1,125
Marketing & Advertising 0 1,094 0 0 1,094 0
Box Office Expenses 5S4 [+] 187 54 0 187
Trash Removal 116 2,800 16 116 2,800 16
Equipment Rental 153 375 0 153 375 0
Landscaping <69> o] 0 <69> 0 0
Exterminating 375 368 0 375 368 0
Cleaning ] 1,250 0 0 1,250 1]
Construction Costs [ [} 777 0 0 777
Repairs & Maintenance 6,402 9,013 8,000 6,402 9,013 8,000
Supplies 529 13,098 15,422 529 13,098 15,422
Bank Service Charges 590 750 677 590 750 677
Insurance 3,830 8,380 15,000 3,830 8,380 15,000
Other Taxes 1] 300 0 0 300 0
Printing & Stationary 1] 731 0 0 731 0
Office Supplies 896 500 89 896 500 89
Postage <222> 200 19 <222> 200 19
Parking Expense 1,321 1,500 0 1,321 1,500 0
Telephone Long Distance 262 2,000 0 262 2,000 0
Utilities 30,709 43,000 18,510 30,709 43,000 18,510
Base Fee 18,750 19,500 33,408 18,750 19,500 33,408
Incentive Fee 0 [ 535 0 0 535
Less: Allocated/Reimbursement 0 <5,987> 0 0 <5,987> 0
TOTAL MATERIAL AND SERVICES 72,753 114,933 98,676 72,753 114,933 98,676
TOTAL INDIRECT EXPENSES 141,518 196,511 155,066 141,518 196,511 155,066




SMG - Van Andel Arena & Grand Center
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Capital Expenditures & Management Fee Summary
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2003

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS
Budget  Expended Balance Project Status
Arena
Lobby Duct Painting 35,000 35,000 Open
Skywalk Ice Melt System 42,000 42,000 Open
Terazzo Floor Repair 38,000 38,000 Open
Banquet Room Refurbishment 25,000 25,000 Open
Hydralic Seating Section 70,000 70,000 Open
Hockey Glass 20,000 20,000 Open
Floor Maintenance Equipment 18,500 18,500 Open
Security Gate System 120,200 120,200 Open
Total Arena 368,700 - 368,700
Grand Center
Refinish DeVos Stage Floor 50,000 50,000 Open
Cyclorama for DeVos Stage House 12,000 12,000 Open
Total Grand Center 62,000 - 62,000
Grand Total Capital Improvements 430,700 - 430,700
MANAGEMENT FEE SUMMARY
Arena Grand Center Total FY 2002
Budget Budget Budget Act/Est
Net Revenue above Expenses 1,240,147 (359,972) 880,175 1,642,788
Benchmark 1,550,000 (359,972) 1,190,028 1,043,839
Excess (309,853) - (309,853) 598,949

Incentive Fee Calculation (Only if above greater than zero)

Arena Grand Center Total FY 2002
Budget Budget Budget Act/Est
Base Fee 234,000 234,000 468,000 450,000
Incentive Fee
Revenue 4,462,922 1,991,859 6,454,781 6,993,519
Benchmark Revenue 4,367,910 1,991,859 6,359,769 5,969,444
Revenue Excess - - - 1,024,075
Incentive Fee ** 206,019
Total SMG Management Fee 234,000 234,000 468,000 656,019

** Incentive fee is 20% of the first $1 million in excess, 25% of remaining capped at base fee amount.



VAN ANDEL

ARENA

VAN ANDEL ARENA

FINANCIAL STATEMENT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

***PRELIMINARY STATEMENTS***

Distribution:

Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Robert White

Glen Mon

Bob Johnson

Gary McAneney

John Szudzik

Richard MacKeigan

Chris Machuta

An SMG Managed Facllity

Item VI.c.ii.



VAN ANDEL ARENA
ROLLING FORECAST
FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2002

YTD ROLL TOTAL BUDGET
FYE FYE VARIANCE
NO. EVENTS 135 138 118 17
ATTENDANCE 777,499 777,499 711,300 66,199
DIRECT EVENT INCOME 1,376,540 . 1,376,540 1,077,595 298,945
ANCILLARY INCOME 1,576,455 1,576,455 1,332,520 243,935
TOTAL EVENT INCOME 2,952,995 - 2,952,995 2,410,115 642,880
TOTAL OTHER INCOME 1,847,076 1,847,076 1,699,681 147,395
TOTAL INCOME 4,800,071 - 4,800,071 4,109,766 690,275
INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE 91,921 91,921 82,334 (9,587)
FINANCE 160,617 160,617 151,806 (8,811)
MARKETING 188,254 188,254 147,483 (40,771)
OPERATIONS 1,002,458 1,092,458 1,019,556 (72,902)
BOX OFFICE 111,911 111,911 109,722 (2,189)
LUXURY SEATING 104,010 104,010 114,218 10,208
SKYWALK ADMIN 31,626 31,626 36,676 5,050
OVERHEAD - 1,363,757 1,353,757 1,215,202 (138,555)
TOTAL INDIRECT EXP. 3,134,554 - 3,134,554 2,876,997 (257,557)

NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES 1,665,617 - 1,665,617 1,232,799 432,718
LESS ALLOCATION FOR CAPITAL REPLACEMENT 204,215 408,715 430,500 21,785
NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES AFTER CAPITAL 1,461,302 - 1,266,802 802,299 410,933
Benchmark revenues 4,199913 Comments:
Final Statement revenues 4,800,071

Projected excess 600,158 June concludes a very successful fiscal year for the Arena. When comparing

f————————— 3
. : to other fiscal years, this will go down as the second most successful year

20% of first $500,000 excess 120,032 that the Arena has had in its six years.
25% of $500,000 and above 25,040

Total Incentive Fee 145,071 The Arena hosted 4 concerts in the month of June which helped the Arena have

2002 Base Fee 225,000 its most successful June in history. The June peformance, coupled with February
Total Fee for FY 2002 370,071 being the most successful month in Arena history, was the driving force in the

posititve performance the Arena had this fiscal year.

General M‘anager U



VAN ANDEL ARENA
FINANCIAL STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS
FOR MONTH ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

The following schedule summarizes operating results for the month ending
and the YTD ending June 30, 2002, compared to budget and to the

prior year:
MONTH June June June

Actual Budget FY 2001
Number of Events 7 4 4
Attendance 60,235 11,100 19,845
Direct Event income $168,049 $32,948 ($524)
Ancillary Income 192,030 29,009 85,330
Other Income 185,784 141,638 246,748
Indirect Expenses (279,766) (239,618) (381,018)
Net Income $266,097 ($36,023) ($49,464)
YTD YTD 2002 YTD 2002 YTD 2001

Actual Budget Prior Year
Number of Events 135 118 151
Attendance 777,499 711,300 772,594
Direct Event Income 1,376,540 1,074,689 1,427,853
Ancillary income 1,676,455 1,332,520 1,541,922
Other Income 1,847,076 1,699,678 1,733,632
indirect Expenses (3,134,554) (2,874,432) (3,188,106)
Net income $1,665,517 $1,232,455 - $1,515,300
Less Capital $404,212 $430,500 $34,600
Net Income after Capital $1,261,305 $801,965 $1,480,700

EVENT INCOME

Event income came in well ahead of expectations with 4 concerts being hosted during
the month including the highest grossing event in Arena history with the Eagles. The
success of the concerts hosted helped the Arena have its best June in history.

ANCILLARY INCOME

Ancillary income came in above expectations for the month as per caps for both food &
beverage and novelties for the events hosted were higher than anticipated. One example
was Tom Petty which had food & beverage per caps of $7.19 compared to $4.81 the last
time he performed at the Arena.

INDIRECT EXPENSES

Indirect expenses came in slightly higher than anticipated.




VAN ANDEL ARENA
FACILITY STATEMENT OF INCOME
PERIOD ENDING 06/30/02

----------------- CURRENT-=---ecasnmmmmmeann mesmsscsmmansaseoYThenonnonosscmns s
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
EVENT INCOME
DIRECT EVENT INCOME
RENTAL INCOME 144,311 46,550 16,692 1,903,320 1,566,595 1,972,322
SERVICES INCOME 23,738 <13,602> <17,216> <526, 780> <491,906> <544,469>
TOTAL DIRECT EVENT INCOME 168,049 32,948 <524> 1,376,540 1,074,689 1,427,853
ANCILLARY INCOME
FOOD & BEVERAGE 135,113 19,275 74,587 1,227,213 1,057,674 1,288,608
NOVELTY 52,797 8,106 9,106 302, 038 232,552 218,960
OTHER ANCILLARY 4,119 1,628 1,637 47,204 42,294 14,354
TOTAL ANCILLARY INCOME 192,030 29,009 85,330 1,576, 455 1,332,520 1,541,922
TOTAL EVENT INCOME 360,079 61,957 84,806 2,952,995 2,407,209 2,969,775
OTHER OPERATING INCOME 185,784 141,638 246,748 1,847,076 1,699,678 1,733,632
ADJUSTED GROSS INCOME 545,863 203,595 331,554 4,800,071 4,106,887 4,703,406
INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE 9,100 6,863 9,435 51,921 82,334 106,529
FINANCE 11,832 12,656 15,250 160,617 151,806 127,295
MARKETING 14,523 12,148 6,034 188,254 144,913 149,729
LUXURY SEATING 7,685 9,520 6,778 104,010 114,218 98,134
OPERATIONS 82,813 84,976 99,110 1,092,458 1,019,558 1,062,051
BOX OFFICE 7,104 9,139 17,545 111,911 109,723 99,611
SKYWALK ADMINISTRATION <778> 3,060 5,221 31,626 36,676 38,094
OVERHEAD 147,487 101,256 221,645 1,353,757 1,215,204 1,506,662
INDIRECT EXPENSES 279,766 239,618 381,018 3,134,554 2,874,432 3,188,106
NET OPERATING INCOME 266,097 <36,023> <49,464> 1,665,517 1,232,455 1,515,300
OTHER EXPENSES
OTHER EXPENSE (INCOME) 199,997 0 0 404,212 46,715 34,600
OTHER EXPENSES 199,997 0 0 404,212 46,715 34,600
NET INCOME (LOSS) 66,100 <36,023> <49,464> 1,261,305 1,185,740 1,480,700

SRoEaaaasooon SSRFSSasSSSIOR = ne nzosss = Boo2



VAN ANDEL ARENA
STATEMENT OF SERVICES INCOME
PERIOD ENDING 06/30/02

---------------- CURRENT-- -=-=-n==s=nem=== =====-===-----YEAR TO DATE-======-=====
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
Advertising Billed 32,111 0 0 309,192 Q 208,116
gponsorship Income 0 0 0 37,000 0 43,248
1abor Billed 2,700 990 990 22,208 21,020 29,162
Changeover Setup Billed 19,671 7,000 8,137 152,981 123,800 173,683
Stagehands Billed 64,153 15,000 14,729 489,928 423,400 $10,195
security Billed 30,535 3,900 10,461 215,550 96,100 160,919
Ushers & Tix Takers Billed 19,898 5,350 4,671 153,011 126,250 156,663
Box Office Billed 1,720 400 387 14,065 16,425 22,851
Ticketing Service Billed 51,501 5,000 1,903 262,686 141,950 163,822
City Police Fire Billed 1,960 1,008 616 14,304 9,744 12,323
EMT Medical Billed 3,763 400 2,800 29,748 11,310 24,698
Production Materials Billed 0 0 30 205 [+} 30
Cleaning Billed 15,566 - 4,400 6,257 128,902 125,000 136,951
Insurance Billed 0 0 (4] 2,592 0 2,240
Group Sales Commigsions Billed [} [ 0 3,171 0 7.552
Telephone Billed 3,145 450 670 27,860 18,625 22,112
Equipment Rental Billed 0 0 0 0 o 2,97S
pamages Billed 0 0 0 0 [} 610
other Production Billed 41,164 4,000 9,698 320,089 173,260 352,851
TOTAL SERVICE INCOME 287,886 47,898 61,350 2,183,490 1,286,984 2,030,999
advertising Expense 32,111 ' 0 <B891> 338,030 0 252,954
sponsorship Expenses 0 0 0 2,800 0 13,118
Labor Wages 2,295 842 842 18,876 17,869 24,787
contracted Changeover Setup Expense 18,729 10,655 10,935 280,723 206,510 254,819
stagehand Wages 61,046 14,654 14,460 512,135 463,870 524,773
Contracted Security Expense 18,894 5,480 11,793 286,064 157,870 241,883
Contracted Ushers & T/T Expense 18,290 9,020 13,541 271,042 257,030 311,541
Ticket Sellers Wages 1,462 0 329 11,679 0 10,595
. picket Service Charge Expense 42,179 5,000 1,893 230,191 151,700 172,382
city Police Fire Expense 1,960 1,008 616 12,904 11,580 9,936
EMT Medical Expense 2,792 947 2,875 50,204 22,674 18,930
Contracted Cleaning Expense 21,432 9,600 12,218 296,316 301,693 321,568
Insurance Expense 0 ] 0 9,219 0 20,553
Allocated Telephone Expense 875 149 150 7,045 4,384 5,168
Equipment Rental Expense 0 0 0 0 0 967
pamage Expense 0 0 [ 0 Q 387
production Expense 41,983 4,145 9,804 383,041 183,610 391,108
TOTAL SERVICE EXPENSE 264,148 61,500 78,566 2,710,270 1,778,790 2,575,468
NET SERVICE INCOME 23,738 <13,602> <17,216> <526,780> <491,906> <544,469>




VAN ANDEL ARENA
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
PERIOD ENDING 06/30/02

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
CASH 5,694,780
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 2,377,081
PREPAID EXPENSES ' 120,625
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 8,192,486

FIXED ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS 8,192,486

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 3,020,390
ACCRUED EXPENSES 462,050
DEFERRED INCOME 808,968
ADVANCED TIX SALES & DEPOSITS 2,337,137
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 6,628,544
EQUITY
FUNDS REMITTED <1,907,504>
FUNDING RECEIVED 565,537
RETAINED EARNINGS 1,644,632
NET INCOME (LOSS) 1,261,277
TOTAL EQUITY 1,563,942

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 8,192,486



VAN ANDEL ARENA
INDIRECT EXPENSE SUMMARY
PERIOD ENDING 06/30/02

----------------- CURRENT=-~-n==-=========" IR 'y o EESEEET T L EEE R Lk
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YERR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
salaries Administration 41,291 42,714 44,986 529,027 512,480 420,448
Part-Time . 3,420 2,230 7,805 73,644 25,930 96,110
Wages-Trade 80,047 68,162 57,047 804,137 817,922 817,585
Auto Expense 777 815 S31 9,079 9,725 6,972
Taxes & Benefits 26,931 28,637 19,954 297,001 343,765 272,347
Less: Allocation/Reimbursemen: <74,558> <64,904> <15,600> <660,061> <778,870> <589,323>
TOTAL LABOR COSTS 77,907 77,654 114,723 1,052,827 930,952 1,024,139
Contracted Security 18,117 16,500 22,928 198,117 198,000 200,524
Contracted Cleaning 0 2,000 2,017 24,370 24,000 24,208
oOther Contracted services 628 300 522 3,977 3,600 3,138
Travel & Entertainment 94 438 473 10,030 5,300 12,646
Corporate Travel [+] 625 45 1,884 7,500 4,630
Meetings & Conventions 3,275 1,087 113 11,706 13,000 2,748
Dues & Subscriptions 42 112 75 3,125 1,300 1,810
Employee Training 32 975 0 2,533 11,700 2,538
Miscellaneous Expense 0 0 <7,000> 0 [+} <7,000>
Computexr Expense 1,493 5,313 1,966 82,451 63,800 31,820
professional Fees 4,457 2,038 3,431 32,851 24,500 23,539
Marketing & Advertising 6,460 7,250 <6,090> 93,068 87,000 63,462
pox Office Expenses a7 0 2,116 1,542 o <l,501>
small Equipment 0 0 0 1,687 o 2,143
Trash Removal 1,744 1,250 1,622 17,605 15,000 17,932
Equipment Rental 1,724 650 1,416 17,587 ) 7,800 16,507
Landscaping 1] 288 0 10,257 3,500 2,130
Exterminating 495 337 248 2,970 4,000 3,150
Cleaning 0 450 0 2,810 5,400 1,060
safety Equipment 0 [} 0 248 0 0
Repairs & Maintenance 5,253 10,674 7,084 85,326 128,000 95,725
Supplies 13,978 15,099 7,342 213,851 181,100 197,147
Bad Debt Expense 0 0 55,000 0 0 55,000
Bank Sexrvice Charges 711 1,163 574 12,972 14,000 13,098
Insurance 10,371 11,517 47,537 125,921 138,149 150,204
Other Taxes 0 300 0 69 3,600 3,062
Printing & stationary 288 1,913 245 5,663 23,000 11,721
office Supplies 54 1,000 771 15,577 12,000 10,448
Postage 1,290 1,050 157 8,181 12,600 6,476
parking Expense 1,793 1,588 1,510 19,897 19,100 19,030
Telephone Long Distance 7,376 4,300 <6,411> 52,613 51,600 44,693
Utilities 30,565 57,487 65,739 709,075 689,800 768,787
Base Fee 18,750 18,750 25,891 225,000 225,000 264,045
Incentive Fee 75,000 0 37,513 120,000 0 125,367
pepreciation 0 488 0 0 5,889 0
Amortization 0 0 1,963 5,737 0 23,560
Common Area Expense <1,164> <2,714> <2,351> <29,901> <32,524> <23,744>
Less: Allocated/Reimbursement <975> <264> <150> <7,045> <3,234> <6,135>
TOTAL MATERIAL AND SERVICES 201,887 161,964 266,295 2,081,755 1,943,480 2,163,967
TOTAL INDIRECT EXPENSES 279,794 239,618 381,018 3,134,583 2,874,432 3,188,106

an a= =moe " as pEaNaxoomsASE SSS=ssSSII=asa

6



VAN ANDEL

ARENA

VAN ANDEL ARENA

FINANCIAL STATEMENT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JULY 31, 2002

Distribution:

Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Robert White

Glen Mon

Bob Johnson

Gary McAneney

John Szudzik

Richard MacKeigan

Chris Machuta

An SMG Managed Facllity

Item Vl.c.ii.



VAN ANDEL ARENA
ROLLING FORECAST
FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2003

YTD ROLL TOTAL BUDGET
FYE FYE VARIANCE
NO. EVENTS 6 120 126 126 -
ATTENDANCE 38,618 733,432 772,050 772,050 -
DIRECT EVENT INCOME 127,399 997,324 1,124,723 1,124,723 -
ANCILLARY INCOME 96,277 1,206,671 1,302,948 1,302,948 -
TOTAL EVENT INCOME 223,676 2,203,995 2,427,671 2,427,671 -
TOTAL OTHER INCOME 159,367 1,755,633 1,915,000 1,915,000 -
TOTAL INCOME 383,043 3,959,628 4,342,671 4,342,671 -
INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE 5,392 86,133 91,525 91,525 -
FINANCE 11,958 154,942 166,900 166,900 -
MARKETING 11,862 161,938 173,800 173,800 -
OPERATIONS 74,727 1,006,925 1,081,652 1,081,852 -
BOX OFFICE 6,499 111,601 118,100 118,100 -
LUXURY SEATING 6,812 109,718 116,530 116,530 -
SKYWALK ADMIN 3,795 32,905 36,700 36,700 -
OVERHEAD 91,951 1,225,366 1,317,317 1,317,317 -
TOTAL INDIRECT EXP. 212,996 2,889,528 3,102,524 3,102,524 -
NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES 170,047 1,070,100 1,240,147 1,240,147 -
LESS ALLOCATION FOR CAPITAL REPLACEMENT 368,700 368,700 368,700 -
NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES AFTER CAPITAL 170,047 701,400 871,447 871,447 -

Comments:

July starts the new fiscal year for the Arena. The Arena performed better
than expected for the month on the success of the Cher and WWE
events held during the month, as well as, hosting one additional concert
than what was expected (Korn & Mary J. Blige).

General Mdnager




VAN ANDEL ARENA
FINANCIAL STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS
FOR MONTH ENDED JULY 31, 2002

The following schedule summarizes operating results for the current month ending
and the YTD ending June 30, 2003, compared to budget and to the prior year:

MONTH July July July

Actual Budget FY 2002
Number of Events 6 5 4
Attendance 38,618 43,000 19,845
Direct Event Income $127,399 $87,144 $116,549
Ancillary Income 96,277 98,850 53,615
Other Income 169,367 159,584 133,850
Indirect Expenses (232,746) (258,539) (248,420)
Net iIncome $150,297 $87,039 $55,5694
YTD YTD 2003 YTD 2003 YTD 2002

Actual Budget Prior Year
Number of Events 6 5 4
Attendance 38,618 43,000 19,845
Direct Event Income $127,399 $87,144 $116,549
Ancillary Income 96,277 98,850 53,615
Other income 159,367 159,584 133,850
Indirect Expenses (212,996) (258,539) (248,420)
Net Income $170,047 $87,039 $56,593
Less Capital $34,600
Net Income after Capital $170,047 $87,039 $20,993

EVENT INCOME

Event income came in above expectations for the month due to the very successful Cher
concert held during the month, plus one additional concert hosted versus the original

budget.

ANCILLARY INCOME

Ancillary income came in slightly below budget, as per caps for the WWE event fell short
of expectations. In addition, the Korn and Mary J. Blige concerts were not attended as
well as expected. While event income was minimally effected, ancillary income suffers

from lower attendance.

INDIRECT EXPENSES

Indirect expenses came in lower than expected.




VAN ANDEL ARENA
FACILITY STATEMENT OF INCOME
PERIOD ENDING 07/31/02

----------------- CURRENT- - - == =cc=--cm--mccee w=cmeemmmmcceeaecYTDe o= mmmm=mmmm—mmee e
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
EVENT INCOME
DIRECT EVENT INCOME
RENTAL INCOME 125,300 96,452 107,620 125,300 96,452 107,620
SERVICES INCOME 2,099 <9,308> 8,929 2,099 <9,308> 8,929
TOTAL DIRECT EVENT INCOME 127,399 87,144 116,549 127,399 87,144 116,549
ANCILLARY INCOME
FOOD & BEVERAGE 60,351 62,362 42,221 60,351 62,362 42,221
NOVELTY 34,386 34,860 9,934 34,386 34,860 9,934
OTHER ANCILLARY 1,540 1,628 1,460 1,540 1,628 1,460
TOTAL ANCILLARY INCOME 96,277 98,850 53,615 96,277 98,850 53,615
TOTAL EVENT INCOME 223,675 185,994 170,164 223,675 185,994 170,164
OTHER OPERATING INCOME 159,367 159,584 133,850 159,367 159,584 133,850
ADJUSTED GROSS INCOME 383,042 345,578 304,014 383,042 345,578 304,014
INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE 5,392 7,626 7,906 5,392 7,626 7,906
FINANCE 11,958 13,908 10,259 11,958 13,908 10,259
MARKETING 11,862 14,484 17,976 11,862 14,484 17,976
LUXURY SEATING 6,812 9,710 5,082 6,812 9,710 5,082
OPERATIONS 74,727 90,135 97,085 74,727 90,135 97,085
BOX OFFICE 6,499 9,842 5,637 6,499 9,842 5,637
SKYWALK ADMINISTRATION 3,795 3,058 2,567 3,795 3,058 2,567
OVERHEAD 91,951 109,776 101,908 91,951 109,776 101,908
INDIRECT EXPENSES 212,996 258,539 248,420 212,996 258,539 248,420
NET OPERATING INCOME 170,047 87,039 55,594 170,047 87,039 55,594
OTHER EXPENSES
OTHER EXPENSE (INCOME) 0 o 35,100 0 0 35,100
OTHER EXPENSES 0 0 35,100 0 0 35,100
NET INCOME (LOSS) 170,047 87,039 20,494 170,047 87,039 20,494




VAN ANDEL ARENA
STATEMENT OF SERVICES INCOME
PERIOD ENDING 07/31/02

---------------- CURRENT----=---===cc==cc =vusce====w-=-YEAR TO DATE--------=---~
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
Advertising Billed 40,786 0 13,089 40,786 0 13,089
Labor Billed 1,672 1,100 1,080 1,672 1,100 1,080
Changeover Setup Billed 13,538 7,600 10,933 13,538 7,600 10,933
Stagehands Billed 82,120 50,500 23,467 82,120 50,500 23,467
Security Billed 21,754 10,300 11,359 21,754 10,300 11,359
Ushers & Tix Takers Billed 9,385 7,700 9,065 9,385 7,700 9,065
Box Office Billed 1,290 800 710 1,290 800 710
Ticketing Service Billed 22,972 19,000 19,030 22,972 19,000 19,030
City Police Fire Billed 1,456 1,344 1,120 1,456 1,344 1,120
EMT Medical Billed 3,400 500 2,550 3,400 500 2,550
Cleaning Billed 9,946 7,200 8,133 9,946 7,200 8,133
Telephone Billed 4,745 2,900 1,495 4,745 2,900 1,495
Other Production Billed 48,088 19,000 11,288 48,088 19,000 11,288
TOTAL SERVICE INCOME 261,151 127,944 113,318 261,151 127,944 113,318
Advertising Expense 38,229 0 13,112 38,229 0 13,112
Labor Wages 1,421 936 918 1,421 936 918
Contracted Changeover Setup Expense 22,098 12,000 8,888 22,098 12,000 8,888
Stagehand Wages 80,529 49,334 22,034 80,529 49,334 22,034
Contracted Security Expense 13,815 10,600 12,068 13,815 10,600 12,068
Contracted Ushers & T/T Expense 15,088 10,900 6,685 15,088 10,900 6,685
Ticket Sellers Wages 1,097 0 603 1,097 0 603
Ticket Service Charge Expense 18,758 19,000 17,346 18,758 19,000 17,346
City Police Fire Expense 1,456 1,344 [+] 1,456 1,344 0
EMT Medical Expense 2,550 1,034 1,881 2,550 1,034 1,881
Contracted Cleaning Expense 16,344 12,146 9,402 16,344 12,146 9,402
Allocated Telephone Expense 1,508 958 425 1,508 958 425
Production Expense 46,159 19,000 11,028 46,159 19,000 11,028
TOTAL SERVICE EXPENSE 259,052 137,252 104,389 259,052 137,252 104,389
NET SERVICE INCOME 2,099 <9,308> 8,929 2,099 <9,308> 8,929




STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:
CASH
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
PREPAID EXPENSES
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
CONTRACT RIGHTS
TOTAL INTANGIBLE ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITY & EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
ACCRUED EXPENSES
DEFERRED INCOME
ADVANCED TICKET SALES
TOTAL CURRENT LIAB.

FUND EQUITY
FUNDS REMITTED
FUNDING RECEIVED FROM CAA
CURRENT YEAR EARNINGS
AMOUNT DUE CAA
TOTAL FUND EQUITY

TOTAL LIAB & EQUITY

VAN ANDEL ARENA

JULY 31, 2002

3,486,036
3,337,937
96,880

690,687
633,602
2,358,443
1,565,833

56,728
170,047
1,445,513

6,920,852

5,248,565

1,672,288

6,920,853

6,920,853




VAN ANDEL ARENA
INDIRECT EXPENSE SUMMARY
PERIOD ENDING 07/31/02

----------------- CURRENT-----creccccnaccccs mocmrcnecccerceececYIDemmmmommmmcecocnann

ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR

Salaries Administration 43,261 47,841 35,644 43,261 47,841 35,644
Part-Time 2,826 2,708 1,662 2,826 2,708 1,662
Wages-Trade 94,143 75,285 44,848 94,143 75,285 44,848
Auto Expense 777 810 531 777 810 531
Taxes & Benefits 30,109 31,364 18,739 30,109 31,364 18,739
Less: Allocation/Reimbursement <93,696> <71,668> <23,447> <93,696> <71,668> <23,447>
TOTAL LABOR COSTS 77,421 86,340 77,976 77,421 86,340 77,976
Contracted Security 18,294 17,083 17,584 18,294 17,083 17,584
Contracted Cleaning 4,196 2,167 2,017 4,196 2,167 2,017
Other Contracted Services 344 300 500 344 300 500
Travel & Entertainment 367 442 193 367 442 193
Corporate Travel 0 625 0 0 625 0
Meetings & Conventions 0 1,083 0 0 1,083 0
Dues & Subscriptions 0 108 0 0 108 0
Employee Training [} 1,000 0 0 1,000 0
Computer Expense 1,839 5,417 25,877 1,839 5,417 25,877
Professional Fees 1,500 2,167 2,128 1,500 2,167 2,128
Marketing & Advertising 3,443 8,250 10,390 3,443 8,250 10,390
Box Office Expenses <2> 0 <60> <2> 0 <60>
Trash Removal 1,603 1,250 879 1,603 1,250 879
Equipment Rental 1,185 1,300 1,144 1,185 1,300 1,144
Landscaping 0 292 3,561 0 292 3,561
Exterminating 248 333 248 248 333 248
Cleaning 0 450 0 [} 450 0
Repairs & Maintenance 5,415 10,666 1,682 5,415 10,666 1,682
Supplies 8,617 15,091 28,744 8,617 15,091 28,744
Bank Service Charges 688 1,000 580 688 1,000 580
Insurance 9,362 11,967 1,035 9,362 11,967 1,035
Other Taxes 0 300 0 0 300 0
Printing & Stationary 0 1,917 1] 0 1,917 0
Office Supplies 0 1,000 1,442 0 1,000 1,442
Postage 169 1,000 94 169 1,000 94
Parking Expense 2,348 1,592 85 2,348 1,592 85
Telephone Long Distance 5,603 4,583 2,664 5,603 4,583 2,664
Utilities 56,728 64,566 51,646 56,728 64,566 51,646
Base Fee 18,500 19,500 18,750 18,500 19,500 18,750
Amortization 0 0 1,963 0 1] 1,963
Common Area Expense <3,365> <2,875> <2,276> <3,365> <2,875> <2,276>
Less: Allocated/Reimbursement <1,508> <375> <425> <1,508> <3755 <425>
TOTAL MATERIAL AND SERVICES 135,575 172,199 170,444 135,575 172,189 170,444
TOTAL INDIRECT EXPENSES 212,996 258,539 248,420 212,996 258,539 248,420




SMG - Van Andel Arena & Grand Center
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Capital Expenditures & Management Fee Summary
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2003

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS
Budget Expended Balance Project Status
Arena
Lobby Duct Painting 35,000 35,000 Open
Skywalk Ice Melt System 42,000 42,000 Open
Terazzo Floor Repair 38,000 38,000 Open
Banquet Room Refurbishment 25,000 25,000 Open
Hydralic Seating Section 70,000 70,000 Open
Hockey Glass 20,000 20,000 Open
Floor Maintenance Equipment 18,500 18,500 Open
Security Gate System 120,200 120,200 Open
Total Arena 368,700 - 368,700
Grand Center
Refinish DeVos Stage Floor 50,000 50,000 Open
Cyclorama for DeVos Stage House 12,000 12,000 Open
Total Grand Center 62,000 - 62,000
Grand Total Capital Improvements 430,700 - 430,700
MANAGEMENT FEE SUMMARY
Arena Grand Center Total FY 2002
Budget Budget Budget Act/Est
Net Revenue above Expenses 1,240,147 (359,972) 880,175 1,642,788
Benchmark 1,550,000 (359,972) 1,190,028 1,043,839
Excess (309,853) - (309,853) 598,949

Incentive Fee Calculation (Only if above greater than zero)

Arena Grand Center Total FY 2002
Budget Budget Budget Act/Est
Base Fee 234,000 234,000 468,000 450,000
Incentive Fee
Revenue 4,462,922 1,991,859 6,454,781 6,993,519
Benchmark Revenue 4,367,910 1,991,859 6,359,769 5,969,444
Revenue Excess - - - 1,024,075
Incentive Fee ** 206,019
Total SMG Management Fee 234,000 234,000 468,000 656,019

** Incentive fee is 20% of the first §1 million in excess, 25% of remaining capped at base fee amount.



SMG - Van Andel Arena & Grand Center
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Capital Expenditures & Management Fee Summary
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2003

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS
Budget Expended Balance Project Status
Arena
Lobby Duct Painting 35,000 35,000 Open
Skywalk Ice Melt System 42,000 42,000 Open
Terazzo Floor Repair 38,000 38,000 Open
Banquet Room Refurbishment 25,000 25,000 Open
Hydralic Seating Section 70,000 70,000 Open
Hockey Glass 20,000 20,000 Open
Floor Maintenance Equipment 18,500 18,500 Open
Security Gate System 120,200 120,200 Open
Total Arena 368,700 - 368,700
Grand Center
Refinish DeVos Stage Floor 50,000 50,000 Open
Cyclorama for DeVos Stage House 12,000 12,000 Open
Total Grand Center 62,000 - 62,000
Grand Total Capital Improvements 430,700 - 430,700
MANAGEMENT FEE SUMMARY
Arena Grand Center Total FY 2002
Budget Budget Budget Act/Est
Net Revenue above Expenses 1,240,147 (359,972) 880,175 1,642,788
Benchmark 1,550,000 (359,972) 1,190,028 1,043,839
Excess (309,853) - (309,853) 598,949

Incentive Fee Calculation (Only if above greater than zero)

Arena Grand Center Total FY 2002
Budget Budget Budget Act/Est
Base Fee 234,000 234,000 468,000 450,000
Incentive Fee
Revenue 4,462,922 1,991,859 6,454,781 6,993,519
Benchmark Revenue 4,367,910 1,991,859 6,359,769 5,969,444
Revenue Excess - - - 1,024,075
Incentive Fee ** 206,019
Total SMG Management Fee 234,000 234,000 468,000 656,019

** Incentive fee is 20% of the first $1 million in excess, 25% of remaining capped at base fee amount.



Item Vl1.c.iii.

GRAND RAPIDS - KENT COUNTY
CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY

PRELIMINARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Twelve Months Ended June 30, 2002

" BEENE GARTER LLP



ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Grand Rapids, Michigan

We have compiled the accompanying preliminary statements of cash receipts and disbursements
and cash receipts and disbursements - budget to actual for the operating account and construction
account of the Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention / Arena Authority for the twelve months
ended June 30, 2002, in accordance with Statements on Standards for Accounting and Review
Services issued by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. These preliminary
statements do not include the cash receipts and disbursements of the Van Andel Arena and Grand
Center which are operated by the Authority. The preliminary financial statements presented have
been prepared on the cash basis of accounting, which is a comprehensive basis of accounting
other than U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

A compilation is limited to presenting in the form of financial statements information that is the
representation of management. We have not audited or reviewed the accompanying financial
statements and, accordingly, do not express an opinion or any other form of assurance on them.

Management has elected to omit substantially all of the disclosures ordinarily included in financial
statements prepared on the cash basis of accounting. If the omitted disclosures were included in
the financial statements, they might influence the user's conclusions about the Authority’s cash
receipts and disbursements. Accordingly, these financial statements are not designed for those
who are not informed about such matters.

July 11, 2002
Grand Rapids, Michigan

BEENE GARTER LLP
50 MONROE NW T 616.235.5200
SUITE e F 616.235.5285
GRAND RAPIDS

M ICHIGAN BUSINESS ADVISORS » CPAS » FINANCIAL SERVICES

49503-2679 INTERNATIONALLY KNOWN AS MOORE STEPHENS BEENE GARTER PLC www.beenegarter.com

1.800.824.7882



m
e e———————————— T T R R R ————————

PRELIMINARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e e ——

i) BEENE GARTER LLP



Statement A

GRAND RAPIDS - KENT COUNTY CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY
Statement of Cash Receipts and Disbursements - Preliminary
From July 1, 2001 to June 30, 2002

RECEIPTS

Beginning Balance - July 1, 2001
State of Michigan

CCBA Capital Contributions
Interest Deposits

Transfer from Operating Account
Transfer from Construction Account
Miscellaneous Revenue

Facility Operations

Total Cash Receipts

DISBURSEMENTS

Checks issued prior months
Checks issued 6/14/02
Checks issued 6/28/02
Payroll Expenditures
Expense Reimbursement
Bank fees

Total Cash Disbursements

Net Pooled Cash and Investments

Operating
Account

Construction
Account

Retainage
Account

$ 3,578,979.18

$ 5,410,627.09 $ -

- 45,000,000.00 -
- 29,713,616.13 -
82,508.13 254,850.53 18,585.91
- 2,000,000.00 ;
- - 2,187,220.00
- 23,153.00 -
1,007,504.47 - ;
5,568,991.78 82,402,246.75 2,205,805.91
3,391,667.74 35,748,765.55 .
55,650.21 3,528,551.71 266,329.00
27,487.63 45,546.57 -
55,171.72 - -
(3,000.06) (1,220.79) .
- (306.34) -
3,526,977.24 39,321,336.70 266,329.00

$ 2,042,014.54

43,080,910.05 $ 1,939,476.91

i BEENE GARTER LLP



Statement B

GRAND RAPIDS - KENT COUNTY CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY
Statement of Cash Receipts and Disbursements - Budget to Actual (Operations) - Preliminary
From July 1, 2001 to June 30, 2002

OPERATING ACCOUNT
Facilities Operations Capital Replacement
Budget Actual Budget Actual
RECEIPTS
Facility Operations $ 1695443 $ 1,907,504 $ 237,000 3 -
Interest on investments 100,000 45,632 40,000 36,876
Capital Replacement Reserve Transfer 570,357 - (570,357) -
From / (To) Fund Balance - (727,023) 530,357 727,023
TOTAL RECEIPTS 2,365,800 1,226,113 237,000 763,899
DISBURSEMENTS
Accounting / Auditing Services 20,000 25,285 - -
Bank Fees - - - -
Insurance - Property and Liability 15,000 24,966 - -
Legal Services 55,000 28,673 - -
Other Contractual Services 8,150 27,883 - -
Facility Management Fees - 151,122 - -
Meeting Expense 650 742 - -
Supplies 1,200 1,164 - -
Transfer to Construction Account 1,000,000 2,000,000 - -
Sub-total Service Disbursements 1,100,000 2,259,837 - -
Electricity 611,000 700,537 - -
Steamn 527,000 440,861 - -
Water and Sewer 67,800 58,645 - -
Sub-total Utility Disbursements 1,205,800 1,200,043 - -
Building Additions and Improvements - - 225,000 -
Facility Equipment Acquisition - - 12,000 -
Sub-total Capital Disbursements - - 237,000 -
Employee Wages 50,000 50,231 - -
Employee Benefits 10,000 16,867 - -
Sub-total Payroll Disbursements 60,000 67,097 - -
TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS 2,365,800 3,526,977 237,000 -
Excess / (Deficit) of Funds $ - $ (2,300,864) $ - $ 763,899
See Comments See Comments
1and2 1and 2

Comment 1: Facilities Operations and Capital Replacement budgets were approved by the GR-KC Convention / Arena
Authority at its regularly scheduled meeting on June 27, 2001.

Comment 2: Facilities Operations and Capital Replacement columns include receipts and disbursements processed by the
C/AA. SMG receipts and disbursements are reported separately in the Van Andel Arena and Grand Center
financial statements prepared by SMG.

i) BEENE GARTER LLP



GRAND RAPIDS - KENT COUNTY CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY

Statement C

Statement of Cash Receipts and Disbursements - Budget to Actual (Construction) - Preliminary
From July 1, 2001 to June 30, 2002

CONSTRUCTION ACCOUNT
Monroe Ave Relocation Convention Center Construction
Budget Actual Budget Actual
RECEIPTS
State of Michigan $ 2,630,697 $ - $ 27,369,303 $ 45,000,000
City / County Bldg Authority Capital Contrib. - 125,883 - 29,587,733
Transfer from Operating Fund - - 1,000,000 2,000,000
Miscellaneous Revenue - 23,153 - -
Interest on Investments 54,830 49,328 445170 205,523
TOTAL RECEIPTS 2,685,527 198,364 28,814,473 76,793,256
DISBURSEMENTS
Architectural and Engineering Services 490,000 328,574 6,000,000 4,408,169
Construction Material Tcsting - - 400,000 601,527
Construction in Progress - GMP 2,175,527 154,243 21,425,973 31,322,139
Sub-total Construction Disbursements 2,665,527 482,817 27,825,973 36,331,836
Bank Fees - - - (306)
Insurance -Property / Liability - - 40,000 42,670
Legal Services 15,000 1,251 50,000 7,697
Project Manager / Owner's Representative - - 285,000 252,349
Other Contractual Services 5,000 50,000 600,000 2,099,071
Sub-total Service Disbursements 20,000 51,251 975,000 2,401,480
Electricity - - - 38,376
Steam - - - 11,877
Water and Sewer - - - 1,869
Sub-total Utility Disbursements - - - 52,122
Advertising / Promotion / Publicity - - 5,000 -
Supplies - - 1,000 -
Postage / Express - - 500 -
Printing and Binding - - 5,000 -
Telephone - - 2,000 1,831
Sub-total Supplies Disbursements - - 13,500 1,831
TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS 2,685,527 534,068 28,814,473 38,787,269
Excess / (Deficit) of Funds $ - $ (335,704) - $ 38,005,987

See Comment

See Comment

Comment: Convention Center Construction budget was approved by the Grand Rapids - Kent County
Convention / Arena Authority at its regularly scheduled meeting on June 27, 2001.

" BEENE GARTER LLP



Item VlI.c.iii.

GRAND RAPIDS - KENT COUNTY
CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY

INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

One Month Ended July 31, 2002

" BEENE GARTER LLP



ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Grand Rapids, Michigan

We have compiled the accompanying statements of cash receipts and disbursements and cash
receipts and disbursements - budget to actual for the operating account and construction accounts
of the Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention / Arena Authority for the one month ending July 31,
2002, in accordance with Statements on Standards for Accounting and Review Services issued by
the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. These statements do not include the cash
receipts and disbursements of the Van Andel Arena and Grand Center which are operated by the
Authority. The financial statements presented have been prepared on the cash basis of
accounting, which is a comprehensive basis of accounting other than U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles.

A compilation is limited to presenting in the form of financial statements information that is the
representation of management. We have not audited or reviewed the accompanying financial
statements and, accordingly, do not express an opinion or any other form of assurance on them.

Management has elected to omit substantially all of the disclosures ordinarily included in financial
statements prepared on the cash basis of accounting. If the omitted disclosures were included in
the financial statements, they might influence the user’s conclusions about the Authority’s cash
receipts and disbursements. Accordingly, these financial statements are not designed for those
who are not informed about such matters.

e Nt C#

August 8, 2002
Grand Rapids, Michigan

BEENE GARTER LLP
50 MONROE NW T 616.235.5200
SutrTe 600 F 616.235.5285
GRAND RAPIDS

M1CHIGAN BUSINESS ADVISORS » CPAs » FINANCIAL SERVICES

49503-26709 INTERNATIONALLY KNOWN AS MOORE STEPHENS BEENE GARTER PLC www.beenegarter.com

1.800.824.7882



INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i) BEENE GARTER LLP



Statement A

GRAND RAPIDS - KENT COUNTY CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY
Statement of Cash Receipts and Disbursements
From July 1, 2002 to July 31, 2002

RECEIPTS

Beginning Balance - July 1, 2002
CCBA Capital Contributions
Interest Deposits

Transfer from Operating Account
Transfer from Construction Account
Facility Operations

Total Cash Receipts

DISBURSEMENTS

Checks issued prior months
Checks issued 7/15/02
Checks issued 7/29/02
Payroll Expenditures
Expense Reimbursement
Total Cash Disbursements

Net Pooled Cash and Investments

i) BEENE GARTER LLP

Operating
Account

Construction
Account

Retainage
Account

$ 2,042,014.54

$ 43,080,910.05

$ 1,939,476.91

- 6,510,000.00 -

10,926.39 60,568.06 4,909.58

- - 428,102.00
96,279.66 - -

2,149,220.59 49,651,478.11 2,372,488.49
52,349.74 5,741,794.14 -
29,902.91 769,208.54 -
4,316.20 - -
86,568.85 6,511,002.68 -

$ 2,062,651.74

$ 43,140,475.43

$ 2,372,488.49
= —————————



Statement B

GRAND RAPIDS - KENT COUNTY CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY
Statement of Cash Receipts and Disbursements - Budget to Actual (Operations)
From July 1, 2002 to July 31, 2002

OPERATING ACCOUNT
Facilities Operations Capital Replacement
Budget Actual Budget Actual
RECEIPTS
Facility Operations $ 2,170,975 $ 96,280 $ - $ -
Parking Revenues 107,772 - - -
Interest on Investments 34,880 6,883 25,120 4,043
Capital Replacement Reserve Transfer 184,418 - (184,418) -
TOTAL RECEIPTS 2,498,045 103,163 (159,298) 4,043
DISBURSEMENTS
Accounting / Auditing Services 25,635 130 - -
Insurance - Property and Liability 33,050 - - -
Legal Services 33,550 554 - -
Other Contractual Services 43,000 - - -
Meeting Expense 890 28 - -
Supplies 1,350 - - -
Transfer to Construction Account 1,000,000 - - -
Sub-total Service Disbursements 1,137,475 711 - -
Electricity 727,000 62,074 - -
Steam 471,000 11,357 - -
Water and Sewer 92,800 7,482 - -
Sub-total Utility Disbursements 1,290,800 80,913 - -
Building Additions and improvements - - 380,200 -
Facility Equipment Acquisition - - 50,500 -
Sub-total Capital Disbursements - - 430,700 -
Employee Wages 52,240 4,000 - -
Empioyee Benefits 17,530 944 ~ -
Sub-total Payroll Disbursements 69,770 4,944 - -
TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS 2,498,045 86,569 430,700 -
Excess / (Deficit) of Funds $ - $ 16,594 $ (589,998) § 4,043
See Comments See Comments
1and 2 1and2

Comment 1: Facilities Operations and Capital Replacement budgets were approved by the GR-KC Convention / Arena
Authority at its regularly scheduled meeting on June 26, 2002.

Comment 2: Facilities Operations and Capital Replacement columns include receipts and disbursements processed by the
C/AA. SMG receipts and disbursements are reported separately in the Van Andel Arena and Grand Center
financial statements prepared by SMG.

i) BEENE GARTER LLP



GRAND RAPIDS - KENT COUNTY CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY

Statement C

Statement of Cash Receipts and Disbursements - Budget to Actual (Construction)
From July 1, 2002 to July 31, 2002

CONSTRUCTION ACCOUNT
Monroe Ave Relocation Convention Center Construction
Budget Actual Budget Actual
RECEIPTS
State of Michigan $ - - $ 2,138,974 $ -
City / County Bldg Authority Capital Contrib. 3,071,036 - 52,381,302 6,510,000
Transfer from Operating Fund - - 1,000,000 -
Interest on Investments 55,000 3,779 698,455 56,789
TOTAL RECEIPTS 3,126,036 3,779 56,218,731 6,566,789
DISBURSEMENTS
Architectural and Engineering Services 1,744,046 - 4,000,000 760,709
Construction Material Testing - - 600,000 30,999
Construction - GMP Contractor 1,133,925 - 47,063,549 5,681,045
Sub-total Contractor Disbursements 2,877,971 - 51,663,549 6,472,752
Insurance - Property / Liability - - 53,338 -
Legal Services 10,000 - 10,000 -
Owner's Representatives - - 270,870 23,645
Other Contractual Services 238,065 - 4,215,724 14,401
Sub-total Service Disbursements 248,065 - 4,549,932 38,046
Advertising / Promotion / Publicity - - 2,500 -
Supplies - - 500 -
Postage / Express - - 160 -
Telephone - - 2,100 205
Sub-total Supplies Disbursements - - 5,250 205
TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS 3,126,036 - 56,218,731 6,511,003
‘Excess / (Deficit) of Funds $ - 3,779 § - $ 55,786

—— —
See Comment

p————————
See Comment

Comment: Convention Center Construction budget was approved by the Grand Rapids - Kent County
Convention / Arena Authority at its regularly scheduled meeting on June 26, 2002.

i! BEENE GARTER LLP



Item VII

GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY
CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF VAN ANDEL ARENA
PREMIUM SEAT AGREEMENTS AND CORPORATE SUITE
AGREEMENTS

Boardmember , supported by Boardmember

moved the adoption of the following resolution:

WHEREAS, in connection with its operation of the Van Andel Arena (the "Arena"), the
Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority (the "CAA") enters into Premium Seat
Agreements and Corporate Suite Agreements (collectively, the "Agreements") with seatholders
and suiteholders; and

WHEREAS, the Agreements are prepared by the Arena manager and require the
signature of both a representative of SMG and an officer of the CAA; and

WHEREAS, the Board of the CAA desires to provide authority for the execution from
time to time of the Agreements.

RESOLVED:

1. That the Agreements in a form prepared by SMG and approved as to form by the
CAA's counsel are authorized from time to time to be executed by the Chairman of the CAA and
in his absence another officer designated by the Chairman.

2. That this authorization shall continue in effect until revoked or modified by
resolution of the CAA Board.

3. That all resolutions, parts of resolutions, policies and guidelines in conflict

herewith shall be, and the same are hereby, rescinded to the extent of such conflict.

GRAPIDS 99993-596 125272



YEAS: Boardmembers

NAYS: Boardmembers

ABSTAIN: Boardmembers

ABSENT: Boardmembers

RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED.

Dated: August 28, 2002

Susan M. Waddell
Administrative Manager/Recording Secretary

CERTIFICATION

I, the undersigned duly qualified and acting Administrative Manager/Recording Secretary
of the Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority (the "CAA"), do hereby certify
that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted by the CAA Board at a
regular meeting held on August 28, 2002, and that public notice of said meeting was given
pursuant to, and in compliance with, Act 267 of the Public Acts of Michigan of 1976, as
amended.

Dated: August 28, 2002

Susan M. Waddell
Administrative Manager/Recording Secretary

GRAPIDS 99993-596 125272



Item VIII

GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY
CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY

RESOLUTION APPROVING AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT FOR
CONSULTING SERVICES WITH ROBERT DUFF CONSULTING, INC.

Boardmember , supported by Boardmember ,

moved the adoption of the following resolution:

WHEREAS, the Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority (the "CAA")
entered into an Agreement for Consulting Services with Robert Duff Consulting, Inc. ("Duff")
dated January 31, 2001 (the "Agreement"), for Duff to provide consulting services to the CAA in
connection with the development of an information technology system for DeVos Place; and

WHEREAS, the CAA Board by resolution on September 26, 2001, increased the
maximum amount of compensation to be received by Duff pursuant to the Agreement from
$10,000 to $20,000; and

WHEREAS, the total maximum compensation of $20,000 will be exceeded and the
CAA and Duff desire to amend the Agreement to provide for a revised method for reimbursing
Duff for its services.

RESOLVED:

1. That the Amendment to Agreement for Consulting Services (the "Amendment")
between the CAA and Duff in the form presented at this meeting is approved and the Chairman
of the CAA is authorized and directed to execute the Amendment for and on behalf of the CAA.

2. That all resolutions, parts of resolutions, policies and guidelines in conflict

herewith shall be, and the same are hereby, rescinded to the extent of such conflict.

GRAPIDS 61448-14 125329



YEAS: Boardmembers

NAYS: Boardmembers

ABSTAIN: Boardmembers

ABSENT: Boardmembers

RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED.

Dated: August 28, 2002

Susan M. Waddell
Administrative Manager/Recruiting Secretary

CERTIFICATION

I, the undersigned duly qualified and acting Administrative Manager/Recording Secretary
of the Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority (the "CAA"), do hereby certify
that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted by the CAA Board at a
regular meeting held on August 28, 2002, and that public notice of said meeting was given
pursuant to and in compliance with Act 267 of the Public Acts of Michigan of 1976, as amended.

Dated: August 28, 2002

Susan M. Waddell
Administrative Manager/Recruiting Secretary

GRAPIDS 61448-14 125329



Item VIII

AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT
FOR CONSULTING SERVICES

THIS AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTING SERVICES (the
"Amendment") is entered into as of July 1, 2002, between the GRAND RAPIDS-KENT
COUNTY CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY (the "CAA") and ROBERT DUFF
CONSULTING, INC. (the "Consultant").

RECITALS

A. The CAA and the Consultant have entered into an Agreement for Consulting
Services dated as of January 31, 2001 (the "Agreement"), for the Consultant to provide
consulting services to the CAA in connection with the development of an information
technology system for DeVos Place.

B. The total maximum compensation amount of $20,000 contained in the Agreement
as previously amended will be exceeded and the parties desire to amend the Agreement to
provide a revised method for reimbursing the Consultant for its services.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the representations and agreements set forth
herein, the parties agree as follows:

Section 1. Amendment to Section 5.1 of Agreement. Section 5.1 of the Agreement is
amended in its entirety to read as follows:

Section 5.1 Charges. The CAA shall pay the Consultant a fee of $95 per
hour for Services rendered pursuant to a written work plan within the scope of
Services described in Section 3.1 hereof covering a specific period of time
prepared by the Consultant and approved in advance by the CAA's Owner's
Representatives. In the event that the CAA requests that additional services be
provided which are beyond the scope and understanding of this Agreement,
Consultant shall provide such services only after the parties hereto have-fully -
discussed the scope of such services and the rate at which Consultant is to be
compensated therefor and shall have agreed to the same in writing.

Section 2. Ratification. The Agreement is in all other respects hereby ratified and
confirmed.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Amendment as of the day and
year first written above.

ROBERT DUFF CONSULTING, INC. GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY
CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY

By: By:
Robert C. Duff APPROVED AS TO FORM John H. Logie
Its: President ; Its: Chairman

GRAPIDS 61448-14 125321 W 4 { %

Légal Counsel for the

NAanvantinn/Orana Aitharita




Item IX

GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY
CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY

RESOLUTION APPROVING AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT FOR
CONSULTING SERVICES WITH JIM HIAESHUTTER AND JERRY
FELLINGER

Boardmember , supported by Boardmember ,

moved the adoption of the following resolution:

WHEREAS, the Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority (the "CAA")
entered into an Agreement for Consulting Services with Jim Hiaeshutter and Jerry Fellinger
(collectively "H/F") dated January 1, 2001 (the "Agreement"), for H/F to provide consulting
services to the CAA in connection with the development of fire safety and security systems for
DeVos Place; and

WHEREAS, the CAA Board by resolution on September 26, 2001, increased the
maximum amount of compensation to be received by H/F pursuant to the Agreement from
$10,000 to $20,000; and

WHEREAS, the total maximum compensation of $20,000 will be exceeded and the
CAA and H/F desire to amend the Agreement to provide for a revised method for reimbursing
H/F for its services.

RESOLVED:

1. That the Amendment to Agreement for Consulting Services (the "Amendment")
between the CAA and H/F in the form presented at this meeting is approved and the Chairman of
the CAA is authorized and directed to execute the Amendment for and on behalf of the CAA.

2. That all resolutions, parts of resolutions, policies and guidelines in conflict

herewith shall be, and the same are hereby, rescinded to the extent of such conflict.

GRAPIDS 61448-15 125334



YEAS: Boardmembers

NAYS: Boardmembers

ABSTAIN: Boardmembers

ABSENT: Boardmembers

RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED.

Dated: August 28, 2002

Susan M. Waddell
Administrative Manager/Recruiting Secretary

CERTIFICATION

I, the undersigned duly qualified and acting Administrative Manager/Recording Secretary
of the Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority (the "CAA™), do hereby certify
that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted by the CAA Board at a
regular meeting held on August 28, 2002, and that public notice of said meeting was given
pursuant to and in compliance with Act 267 of the Public Acts of Michigan of 1976, as amended.

Dated: August 28, 2002

Susan M. Waddell
Administrative Manager/Recruiting Secretary

GRAPIDS 61448-15 125334



Item IX

AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT
FOR CONSULTING SERVICES

THIS AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTING SERVICES (the
"Amendment") is entered into as of July 1, 2002, between the GRAND RAPIDS-KENT
COUNTY CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY (the "CAA") and JIM HIAESHUTTER
and JERRY FELLINGER (the "Consultants").

RECITALS

A. The CAA and the Consultants have entered into an Agreement for Consulting
Services dated as of January 1, 2001 (the "Agreement"), for the Consultants to provide
consulting services to the CAA in connection with the development of fire safety and security
systems for DeVos Place.

B. The total maximum compensation amount of $20,000 contained in the Agreement
as previously amended will be exceeded and the parties desire to amend the Agreement to
provide a revised method for reimbursing the Consultants for their services.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the representations and agreements set forth
herein, the parties agree as follows:

Section 1. Amendment to Section 5.1 of Agreement. Section 5.1 of the Agreement is
amended in its entirety to read as follows:

Section 5.1 Charges. The CAA shall pay the Consultants a fee of $100
per hour for Services rendered pursuant to a written work plan within the scope of
Services described in Section 3.1 hereof covering a specific period of time
prepared by the Consultants and approved in advance by the CAA's Owner's
Representatives. In the event that the CAA requests that additional services be
provided which are beyond the scope and understanding of this Agreement,
Consultants shall provide such services only after the parties hereto have fully
discussed the scope of such services and the rate at which Consultants are to be
compensated therefor and shall have agreed to the same in writing.

Section 2. Ratification. The Agreement is in all other respects hereby ratified and
confirmed.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Amendment as of the day and
year first written above.

CONSULTANTS GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY
CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY

By:
Jim Hiaeshutter John H. Logie
Its: Chairman
APPROVED AS TO FORM

Jerry Fellinger
a G DK,

Legal Counsel for the
Convention/Arena Authority

GRAPIDS 61448-15 125324



VAN ANDEL ARENA WEEKLY

Item X

DATE EVENT EC ROOM TIME FUNCTION
Wed, Aug 21 | Santana MS | Arena 9:00 AM Load-in
2:00 PM Chair set
5:30 PM Security meeting
6:30 PM Doors
7:30 PM Rusted Root
8:15PM Intermission
8:45 PM Santana
10:30 PM Load-out
11:00 PM Show over
Santanta JS | Banquet C/D 7:00 AM Set-up
8:30A-9P Crew catering
Thur, Aug 22 | Available
Fri, Aug 23 Available
Sat, Aug 24 Great Lakes Irish Music Festival AH | Arena 8:00 AM Load-in/Vendor load-in
11:30 AM Doors
12:00 PM Liam Tiernan
12:45 PM Irish Step Dancers
1:30 PM Providence
2:55 PM Danny Doyle
4:15PM Irish Step Dancers
5:00 PM Liam Tiernan
5:50 PM Brigid’s Cross
7:15PM Prodigals
8:40 PM Aoife Clancy Band
9:45 PM Grand Finale
10:00 PM Load-out
Sun, Aug 25 | Available
Mon, Aug 26 | Available
Tue, Aug 27 | The Who MS | Arena 9:00 AM Load-in
2:00 PM Chair set
4:00 PM Sound check
6:30 PM Doors
7:45P-8:40P Robert Plant
8:40P-9:10P Intermission
9:10P-11:25P The Who
11:00 PM Load-out
Wed, Aug 28 | Styx/REO AH | Arena 7:00 PM Performance
Thur, Aug 29 | Available
Fri, Aug 30 Available
Sat, Aug 31 Available
Sun, Sep 1 Available
Mon, Sep 2 Available
Tue, Sep 3 Available
Wed, Sep 4 City of Grand Rapids Horseshoe Area | 7A-4P Chemical disaster exercise
Loading Docks
Banquet Rooms
Parking Areas
2, 3, and most
of 6
Thur, Sep 5 Grand Rapids Sports Hall of Fame | AH | Lobby 5:30P-7P Cocktail reception
Banquet All 7P-10P Inductee dinner & ceremony
Fri, Sep 6 Primerica MS | Arena 9:00 AM Load-in
6:30 PM Doors
7P-10P Conference
Sat, Sep 7 Primerica MS | Arena 8:00 AM Doors
8:30A-12P Conference
12P-1P Lunch break
1P-4P Conference
4P-6:30P Dinner break




| 6:30P-10P | Conference




Sun, Sep 8 Primerica MS | Arena 8:00 AM Doors
9A-12P Conference

Mon, Sep 9 Available

Tue, Sep 10 Available

Wed, Sep 11 | Available

Thur, Sep 12 | Available

Fri, Sep 13 Available

Sat, Sep 14 Gaithers AH | Arena 6:00 PM Performance

Sun, Sep 15 Available

Mon, Sep 16 | Available

Tue, Sep 17 Available

Wed, Sep 18 | Available

Thur, Sep 19 | DP Fox/Red Wings MS | Arena 7:30P-10P Red-White game

Fri, Sep 20 I Still Do AH | Arena 8A-5P Load-in

Sat, Sep 21 I Still Do AH | Arena 8A-5:30P Conference

Sun, Sep 22 Available




FONVINRIOJYEd dS1:01-d8
LS lv3agdn dOg:L-dL /Ad 1 TVIISSVIO — OSUD
Y ONLLIIN NOON-V8 g ONLLITN ALID €1 1d9S Tad
TVSAVAHTY dO€:01-d0t:L
LS ONVH JIN di-dv /Ad 1 TVIISSVIO - OS¥D C1 1d3S ‘S4NHL
TVSIVAHTA d0¢:01-d0¢:L
1S IVSIVAHTA d9-d0g:¢ /Ad 1 TVIISSVIO — OSUD 11 L3S 'dam
TVSIVIHTA do1-d0og:L
1S NI HAON d1-v§ /AQ 1 TVIISSVTID ~ OO 01 143§ 'SaNL
1NO IAON
ONILIIN
IR NI JAON Jat:n: 1% SH1VIDOSSY ® 900N
JA 1NO FAON ds-vsg /VMHO MOHS JTALSHAI'T 6 1Ld9S 'NOW
1O IAON d0i-ds
A MOHS dS-NOON NMHO MOHS FTALSHAI] 8 1498 ‘NNS
4N MOHS d6-vol /VMHO MOHS JTALSHAI] L 1d4S "LVS
TVSIVIHTA d01-d0g-L
TVSIVIHTA d9-dog:¢
1S NI JAON d0¢g:€-d0gT /AQ TVSYIVIHTI - OSAD
JN MOHS d6-NOON /VMHD MOHS FTALSHAIT 9 1ddS TId
1NO IAON d0£:01-d0¢:6
FONVIWIOJIdd d0¢:6-d0t L
ONILVES OL S900a dL
1S NI JAON di-V8 /AQ OSAUD — LIOHS NILIVIN
IN NI FAON ds-v8 /VM'HO MOHS FTALSHAIT § 1ddS ‘SYNHL
dN NI JAON ds-vse /VMHO MOHS FTALSTAIT ¥ LddS ‘dIm
£ 1ddS "SdN.L
T LddS 'NOW
1 1498 'NAS
1¢ DNV 'LVS
0€ ONV Nid
67 DNV "SAUNHL
8T ONV 'dIm
LZTONV S3NL
97 DNV 'NONW
STONV 'NNS
JAVMTIVH
ONRIFLVO dog:11-d0og:L WOOY ONISSTIA Ad
1NO JAON d0¢:11-d0g-01
JONVIIOJIEd d0€:01-d0¢*8
ONILVIS Ol S¥00d ds INITVL
1S NI JAONW d8-dv /Ad ‘NVALOYE ‘NOOdSIYTHLIM NHOI $ZONV LVS
£ 0NV T4
1NO FAON V0e£:Z1-d0tE:01
FONVINIOLIIEd d0€:01-d8 /A
N340 S¥00d dog:L /ONILVIS Ad
YANNIQ d8-d9
HONNT dOog:1-voe- il rd
NI SAON dL-v8 | /L9 3D0AFOVILS Ad
1S dN L3S ONRFIFLVD Vi 71d LYFATT gTVAIO 779NV ‘SUNHL
120NV 'ddm
NOILLONYLSNOD Jd NOILIONNA JNILL NOOY LNIAT ILva

7002 AVAA - A'DITIM JIINID ANVHED




0¢ L3S 'NOW

100 IA0ON d0g:6-dog:S
1S FONVINIO:DIAd d0g:§-d€ /AQ 014 - NVINIAVD FHL ONIANTAId 67 1d9S 'NNS
FONVINIOIT d0€:01-d8
1S AONVINIOIAT (x4 /Ad 014 - NVIWIAVD dHL ONIANTIId
1NO FAON
13NONVd
AN NI IAON PDIHD NOLLVANNOA NV.LITOJOYLIN 87 1d44S "LVS
1S FONVINIOIIAd d0g:01-d8 IAQ D1d - NVNIAVO FHL ONIANIAId LT 1d9S Tdd
FONVIRIOIAd do1-dog:L
1S FONVINIOIIAd dOE:-dz /AQ OL1d - NVINIAVD FHL DNIANTIIA 97 1dd9S "SYNHL
1S FONVINIONIAd d01-d40g:L /AQ 01d - NVIWIAVD FHL ONIANIIIA §7 1d49S "ddm
do1-dog:L
1S FONVIIOIIAd ds-v6 /NG D14 - NVIWIAVD FHL ONIANZIIA $T Ld4S "SanlL
1S ONVH-TId ds-d1 /AQ 014 - NVINIAVD FHL ONIANTA3d £7 LddS '"NOW
1NO FAON ds-ds
1S FONVINIONITd ds-d¢ /Ad 1 SdOd — OSYD 77 1d43S 'NNS
1S FONVNIO:NIT d0o1-d8 /Ad 18d0d — OSUD 12 1ddS "LVS
1N0 JAON
SLIgIHXT
NI JIAON /HD ¢/1 SRIVIOd
1S FONVINIOLIAd d01-d8 /Ad 1Sd0d — OSYD 07 1d4S T4
IVSIVIHTY d01-d0€:L
IVSYVIHTY d9-dog:¢€
AR NI IAOW di-v8 IAQ 1 $dOd — OS¥D 61 1d9S "SANHL
81.1d9S ‘dam
L11449S 'sanl
1N0 IAON
a1
dN LINONVE /VMHD YANNIA 3417 NO SND0d 91 1ddS ‘"NOW
IN NI IAON /NMHD YANNIC 41T NO SND04 §1.1d9S ‘NNS
1010 IAON ‘NIW dl1-d01
FONVINIODIAd ds1:01-d8
1S lvaddn dog:L-dL /AQ 1 TVOISSVID ~ OSYD
1N0 IAONW
MOHS MOHSIAVIL
A NI JAON /HD €/T INIW ‘SNOS % WYHWIEV 'S #1 1d3dS "LVS
NOILLDMILSNOD 24 NOILLONNA INIL J(010) | LNIAT alvda




